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DRAFT 

CHARIHO AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE 
Thursday, January 19, 2023 

Meeting minutes of the Chari ho Aud it Subcommittee held on Thursday, January 19, 2023 

at the Chariho Administration Conference Room, 455A Switch Rd., Wood River Junction, RI 

02894. 

In attendance were committee members: Deb Carney, Ken Mott and Steve Parente. 
Chariho Staff members: Ned Draper, and Jodi Brock. 

Auditor from Marcum Accountants & Advisors: Ben Wilkinson. 

In Virtual Attendance: Jim Wilkinson from Marcum Accountants 
Absent: Tyler Champlin 

The meeting was called to order at 5:56 pm by Chairman Steve Parente. 

Motion by Deb Carney, second by Ken Mott to APPROVE THE MINUTES OF AUGUST 30, 2022 

Vote 3-0. IN FAVOR : CARNEY, MOTT AND PARENTE 

MOTION CARRIED 

Ben Wilkinson reviewed the audit and answered questions regarding significant risks under SAS 
134, Financial Statements, auditor opinions, findings under Governmental Auditing Standards, 

the General Fund, Bond Sinking Fund, and the lunch fund. Ned Draper answered additional 

questions. 

Motion by Deb Carney, second by Ken Mott to ACCEPT THE AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND FORWARD TO THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

Vote 3-0. IN FAVOR : CARNEY, MOTT AND PARENTE 

MOTION CARRIED 

MOTION TO ADJOURN by Deb Carney, second by Steve Parente. 

Vote 3-0. IN FAVOR : CARNEY, MOTT AND PARENTE 

MOTION CARRIED 

Meeting adjourned at 6:30 

Submitted by,Deb Carney, 
Secretary, CHARI HO Audit Subcommittee 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of the School Committee 
Chariho Regional School District 

Report on the Financial Statements ~ 

~«; 
~~ ~ 

~ 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental acti~'ys, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.~~~ Chariho Regional School District 
(District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the remed notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial stat~nts as listed in the table of contents. 

0 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statemen~4"e7erred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the ~nmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fu~rnformation of the District, as of June 30, 2022, and 
the respective changes in financial position, an¢where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting princ~ generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 0«.,~ 

We conducted our audit in accor~~r with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the sta~rds applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards (GAS), issued ~e Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are furtMr described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section oJ:._~t,lr· report. We are required to be independent of the Chariho Regional School 
District and to meet' our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Chariho Regional School 
District's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fro~ error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the o~,$'iae of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood ~t, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonabl~~er based on the financial 
statements. ~"-0 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Governme~diting Standards, we 
p 

• exercise professional judgment and maintain profes~al skepticism throughout the audit. 

• identify and assess the risks of material missta¼(!ie~t of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform ~t' procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test ~s,-evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. '?" 

• obtain an understanding of inter~'\ontrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate ,i~'1ie circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness ~~1i~ District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. ~ 

• evaluate the appropria~uis of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimate~Qade by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial stateme~ 

• conclude wh~ in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control - related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary !reformation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedule, the Schedule of District's Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension Liability-Employees' Retirement System (ERS), the Schedule of District's 
Contributions-Employees' Retirement System (ERS), the Schedule of Changes in the District's Net 
Pension Liability and Related Ratios-Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS), and the 
Schedule of District's Contributions-Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS), and the 
Schedule of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on pages 5-11 and 70-75 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. ~ 

Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is r~td by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part o~ancial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, econo~~r historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplement~ information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of ~ica, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the informr and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquir~ the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fi~~'3al statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information beca~he limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provi~ 'ifuy assurance. 

,t 
Other Information _.(:-. 

@-

Our audit was conducted for the ~~se of forming opm10ns on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Chariho ~onal School District's basic financial statements. The combining 
and individual nonmajor fund fi~ial statements and the annual supplemental transparency report are 
presented for purposes of add~al analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

« 
The combining and ~dual non-major fund financial statements and the annual supplemental 
transparency report ~e responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual non-major fund financial statements and the annual supplemental transparency report are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January :XX1 
2023 on our consideration of the Chariho Regional School District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Chariho Regional School District's internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Chariho Regional School District's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Providence, RI 
January XX, 2023 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

As management of the CHARI HO Regional School District, we offer readers of the District's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have 
furnished in the notes to the basic financial statements and the financial statements to enhance their understanding of 
the District's financial performance. 

CORONAVIRUS IMPACT 

The District opened the 2021-2022 school year with full in-person learning. The District continues to operate 
under the guidelines of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic responses issued by the Rhode Island Department 
of Health (RIDOH) and the Rhode Island Department of Education (RIDE) which in turn follow the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) protocols. 

The District continued its response to the pandemic in accordance with RIDE Wc!il!l).nce and requirements. The 
facilities staff continued to follow the CDC's guidelines for additional cleaning and ~'!Meeting of all school buildings. 
The traditional school lunch program continued to be suspended and replaced wit~eral "Summer Food Service" and 
"Emergency Operational Cost Reimbursement" programs providing all stude~t~~ meals at no cost. 

The District provided RIDE with its Back to School Plan that wasl@ired to align with the State plan. The plan 
is periodically updated as required by RIDE and as a condition for r ing Federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security Act ("CARES ACT") funding in response to the p~ ic. 

In addition, the District received the following grants in Fcf!4%2 related to pandemic responses: 

~ 
The CARES Act ESSER II grant for $1,199,194 to ~hase RIDE mandated curriculum, technology equipment 

for students and facilities capital improvements related t~i quality and school opening. We anticipate ESSER II will 
be fully spent in FY23. The ESSER Ill grant for $2,~343 is to meet federal performance and finance goals with a 
focus on academic achievement to overcome di~~li5'Tearning gaps. The ESSER Ill grant has been approved by RIDE 
and majority of programming will be applied in F~~ and FY24. 

~ 
The School Committee re-assigned4i remaining $1,415,615 of FY21 Covid funds to a commitment for capital 

projects as approved by the School Coi\foflee in April 2021. This adjustment is applied to the FY22 results. 

Operational influences include: ~~ 
• Provide lunches in clas~s or congregate settings when safe to do so 
• Reduced health care~1zation by employees due to healthcare system limitations 
• Expansion of th~t !(i:eral school lunch program through FY2022 
• Adjust to unfor n labor shortages, supply chain disruptions, and resource constrictions as necessary 
• Close schools t in-person learning if necessary due to RIDOH or staffing level requirements 
• Reduce classroom and hallway building occupancy. Use windows for ventilation, move to HEPA filters when outside 

air temperature is too low for comfort of learning environment 
• Train and equip custodial staff for CDC recommended cleaning processes 
• School year 2021-2022 moved primarily to in-person learning and programs district wide 
• In school year 2021-2022, students are no longer offered a DL option except in isolated instances or when district 

selected per RI DE requirements 
• Adjust campus and district bus schedules to accommodate large volume of parent/students driving to ·school on 

their own. In FY23 this has diminished to typical volumes as the pandemic restrictions have lifted. 
• Lunch fund balance has grown during suspension of paid lunch program. Due to reimbursement levels we expect 

lunch fund balance to decrease in FY23 as inflation impact upon community gains traction. 
• Revenues came in under expectations as neighboring communities realized declines in enrollment, this in turn 

negatively impacted overall CTC tuitions. 
• Revenue for Categorical Transportation aid and Medicaid billing was below budgeted expectations. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• General Fund revenues were $62.5 million in fiscal year 2022, compared to $61.4 million in fiscal year 2021. 

• The District had approximately $65.1 million in expenses related to governmental activities; of which $13.1 
million of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services or grants and contributions. A 
decrease from $70.5 million in expenses from fiscal year 2021 of which $12.2 million of expenses were offset 
by program specific charges for services or grants and contributions. 

• The District had business-type activity in several major and non-major proprietary funds. The Lunch fund's 
operating and non-operating revenues totaled $1,609,139 and operating expenses totaled $1,219,01 O 
(including depreciation of $1,030) leaving net income of $390,129 for 2022. Operating and non-operating 
revenues totaled $812,848 and operating expenses totaled $760,238 (including depreciation of $675), leaving 
net income of $52,610 for 2021. 

• Among major funds, the General Fund had $62.5 million in fiscal year 2022 revenues compared to $61.4 
million in 2021, which primarily consisted of contributions from the Towns of Charlestown, Richmond, and 
Hopkinton, and $64.0 million in expenditures (including transfers) in 2022 com~d to $60.6 million (including 
transfers) in 2021. The General Fund's fund balance decreased from $9.9 ~n to $8.4 million during fiscal 
2022. «:-«; 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS !::'-«_,<(_, 
~ 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introd to the District's basic financial statements. 
The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: ernment-wide financial statements, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This~ also contains other supplementary information 
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

0
--::5 

Government-wide financial statements - The govemme:\~e financial statements are designed to provide readers 
with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a man~similar to a private-sector business. 

~ 
The Statement of Net Position presents info•~tion on all of the District's assets, deferred outflow of resources, 

liabilities, and deferred inflow of resources with t~iff~ience between these items reported as net position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may se~ as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is 
improving or deteriorating. ~" 

0 
The Statement of Activities p~ts information showing how the District's net position changed during the 

most recent fiscal year. All chang~m net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of tfJJRliming of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that '-0/;il!-linly result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected fees and earned but 
unused compensated abse~s). 

()'<! 
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of the District that are principally supported by 
contributions from the Towns of Charlestown, Richmond, and Hopkinton, vocational tuitions, and other 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities), The governmental activities of the District include instruction, 
instructional support, operations, and community services, 

Fund financial statements • A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives, The District uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, All of the funds of the District can be divided into three 
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 

Governmental funds. Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating 
the District's near-term financing requirements. .;f' 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the gov~~ent-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds wjttJ~Yi~ilar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doi~'l,, readers may better understand the 
long-term impact of the District's near-term financial decisions, Bo~th the :Sfi;,vernmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and change fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governm activities, 

The District maintains many individual Governmental ,R$fds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fu/\~tatement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances for the General Fund (considered a major fu~nd all remaining non-major governmental funds. Detail 
of the funds, which comprise the non-major government~nds, can be found in the combining schedules, which are 
located in supplementary information, ':S"Q 

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to a 'tnt for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the District 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the govern -wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are 
not available to support the District's own p ams, The accrual basis of accounting is used for fiduciary funds, 

0 
Proprietary Funds. Proprietary F, ,,,,b~'have historically operated as enterprise funds using the same basis of 
accounting as business-type activit~h~refore, these statements will essentially match the information provided in 
the government-wide statement~F lhe Business-type activities. The District operates a Lunch Fund that is classified 
as a major fund and six other l0'11Js that are considered non-major enterprise funds, The details for these non-major 
enterprise funds can be fou~n the supplementary information, 

Notes to the financial~ments. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, 

Other information, In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information concerning the District's budget process, The District adopts an annual 
expenditure budget for the General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund 
and is reported in required supplementary information. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In 
the case of the CHARIHO Regional School District, liabilities and deferred inflow of resources exceeded assets and 
deferred outflow of resources by $17,497,374 at June 30, 2022. 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 
Deferred outflows 

of resources 
Total assets and 

deferred outflows of 
resources 

Current liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 
Deferred inflows of 

resources 
Total liabilities and 
deferred inflows of 

resources 

Net position: 
Net investment in 
capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

CHARIHO Regional School District 
Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2022 ill! 2022 2021 

$23,822,537 $22,998,991 $829,622 $434,386 
26,897,548 28,130,000 9 272 
50,720,085 51,128,991 838,894 434,386 

9 700 906 11,519,727 

Total 

2022 

$24,652,159 
26,906,820 
51,558,979 

~00,906 

~«; 
60,420,991 62,648 718 838,894 434 386 ~<i; 61,259,885 

126,~«., 7,573,111 7,598,078 144,651 7,717,762 
54,128,573 72,253,782 

~69 
54,128,573 

61,701,684 79,851,860 144,651 61,846,335 

00 16 910,924 6,080,700 16,910,924 

0'0 
78,612,608 85,932 560 14#-1 126,469 78,757,259 

f 
~ 

8,198,219 8,532 ,t 9,272 8,207,491 
6,076,197 5, 6,076,197 

32,466,033 37, 684,971 307,917 (31,781,062) 
($18,191,617) ($23, $694,243 $307,917 ($17,497,374) 

'S''?' 
~'?' 

o«:--
"-«. 
~ <:) 

2021 

$23,433,377 
28,130,000 
51,563,377 

11,519,727 

63,083,104 

7,724,547 
72,253,782 
79,978,329 

6,080,700 

86,059,029 

8,532,004 
5,537,508 

(37,045,437) 
($22,975,925) 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 

The change in net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was an increase of $5,478,551 which 
included an increase from governmental activities of$5,092,225 and an increase in business-type activities of$386,326. 
Details of the changes in net position are presented below. 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 

CHARIHO Regional School District 
Statement of Activities 

Governmental 
Activities 

2022 2021 

$ 3,390,781 $ 3,488,722 

Business-type 
Activities 

2022 2021 

$ 97,183 $ 83,550 

Total 

2021 

$ $3,487,964 $ 3,572,272 

Operating grants and 
contributions 

Capital grants and 
contributions 

9,672,096 8,342,816 1,592,522 791,850 11,264,618 9,087,500 

~ 
General Revenue: ~~ 

Town contributions 53,886,976 52,314,071 «;-<;;, 
Intergovernmental 3,084,147 6,459,974 ~ 
Loss on disposal of assets "'.<i) 
Investment earnings 45,231 20,694 -{{:-
Miscellaneous 66 467 56,912 ~ 

Total revenues -~70~·~14~5~,6~9~8 __ ~7~1~,0=5=6,~98=3 1,689, 7050~ 875,400 
Expenses: SJ 

Educational services 61,343,269 66,806,318 '0~ 
Unallocated depreciation 2,803,472 2,780,054 >< 0 
Interest and amortization , " 

Expense 906,732 957,559 . ~' 
Lunch fund 01 1,219,010 760,238 
Non-major enterprise funds -==~----~~$) 84,369 51,228 

Total expenses 65,053,473 70,543,fr _ _.1"",3"'0"'3,_,,_37,_,9'-----'8'-'1-'-1 "'4"'66"--
Change in net position i\ 

before transfers 5,092,225 . ~,052 

373,794 

386,326 63,934 

53,886,976 
3,084,147 

45,231 
66,467 

71,835,403 

61,343,269 
2,803,472 

906,732 
1,219,010 

84,369 
66,356,852 

5,478,551 

373,794 

52,314,071 
6,459,974 

20,694 
56,912 

71,885,217 

66,806,318 
2,780,054 

957,559 
713,072 

51,228 
71,308,231 

576,986 
Transfers ~ .. 
Change in net position 5,092,225 0~'L513,052 386,326 63,934 5,478,551 576,986 
Net position - beginning (23,283,842~~ (23,796,894) 307,917 243,983 (22,975,925) (23,552,911) 
Net position - ending $(18, 191,~ $(23,283,842) $694,243 $307,917 $(17,497,374) $(22,975,925) 

As any maJor changes to our ob~ves and programs, and as a result our financial position and results of operations, 
are the results of initiativ:,s_~~ted. through our budgetary process we direct the reader to the section of this analysis 
labeled General Fund B~tary Highlights on pages 9 and 10 for information regarding these matters. 

REVENUE SOURCES<) 

Local Contributions: The largest percentage of revenues comes from contributions from the Towns of Charlestown, 
Richmond, and Hopkinton. Per the enabling legislation of the regional school District (The CHARI HO Act), "Operating 
expenses for each fiscal year or portion thereof shall be apportioned among the member towns in proportion to the 
relationship of their respective pupil enrollment in the said District school system on October 1 of the previous calendar 
year to the total pupil enrollment in the said school system on said date". The enrollment numbers for calculation of the 
annortionment for the last five vears are as follows: 

FY2017-18 FY2018-19 FY2019-20 FY2020-21 FY2021-22 
Charlestown 856 795 778 754 767 

27.02% 25.38% 24.82% 24.61% 24.79% 
Richmond 1,179 1,184 1,179 1,157 1,171 

37.22% 37.79% 37.61% 37.76% 37.85% 
Honkinton 1,133 1,154 1,178 1,153 1,156 

35.76% 36.83% 37.57% 37.63% 37.36% 

TOTAL 3,168 3,133 3,135 3,064 3,094 
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REVENUE SOURCES (Continued) 

Housing Aid: In accordance with RI General Law 16-7-35 to 16-7-47, districts that undertake school housing projects 
for maintenance, renovation or new construction supported by general obligation bonds, and certain lease revenue 
bonds, capital leases, and capital reserve funds, are eligible for state housing aid reimbursement. Housing aid by law 
has a one year reference which results in the first payment of the construction entitlement being made in the fiscal year 
following the completion of the project. Housing aid received from the State in FY22 totaled $419,646. 

Intergovernmental Grants: Revenues in this category are proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Revenues are derived principally from federal and state governments 
and private foundations. These funds are detailed in the financial statements under the caption of Grant Programs. 

EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION - The expenditures of governmental activities are categorized by function in the ten 
areas as listed below: 

Employee Compensation -Amounts paid to District employees, including personnel substituting for those in permanent 
positions. This includes gross salary for services rendered while on the payroll of WDistrict and other forms of 
compensation. ~'s 

~ 
Employee Benefits -Amounts paid by the District on behalf of employees (amoi(lp~not included in gross salary but in 
addition to that amount). Such payments are fringe benefit payments and, ~'6ugh not paid directly to employees, 
nevertheless are part of the cost of personnel services. $ 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services - Services that by t!J~ature can be performed only by persons or 
firms with specialized skills and knowledge. Although a product m~ may not result from the transaction, the primary 
reason for the purchase is the service provided. Included are tb.~rvices of architects, engineers, auditors, dentists, 
medical doctors, lawyers, consultants, teachers, and account~\sl. A separate account should be established for each 
type of service provided to the District. ;:§:>°'' 

Purchased Property Services - Services purchased~rsrate, repair, maintain, and rent property owned or used by 
the District. These services are performed by pers other than District employees. Although a product may or may 
not result from the transaction, the primary reas~ the purchase is the service provided. 

{<) 
Other Purchased Services -Amounts paid f ervices rendered by organizations or professionals not on the payroll of 
the District (separate from Professional echnical Services or Property Services). Although a product may or may 
not result from the transaction, the pri reason for the purchase is the service provided. 

Supplies -Amounts paid for itemf\~ are consumed, are worn out, or have deteriorated through use or items that lose 
their identity through fabricatio~r incorporation into different or more complex units or substances. 

"-
Capital Outlays - Expen&l~es for acquiring capital assets, including land, existing buildings, existing infrastructure 
assets, and equipment<) 

Debt Service and Miscellaneous - Amounts paid for goods and services not otherwise classified above. 

Other Items - Used to classify transactions that are not properly recorded as expenditures/expenses but require control 
and reporting by the District. 

Contra Account - This series is used so that those dollars will not be uploaded to the data warehouse. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

There were minor differences between expenditures in the District's original budget and the final amended 
budget. There were no additional appropriations necessary during the fiscal year. 

Actual revenues and other financing sources were $804,227 lower than budgeted amounts. This was primarily 
attributable to the District receiving less than anticipated intergovernmental revenue. 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS (Continued) 

Actual expenditures and other financing uses were less than budgeted amounts by $2,542,772. Positive budget 
variances occurred in the Employee Benefits category ($1,748,763 primarily due to favorable healthcare claim 
experience, labor contract pending, and lower pension and payroll costs), in the Purchased Services categories 
($585,100 primarily due to lower than anticipated costs related to professional purchased services, conferences and 
workshops, other purchased technical services, maintenance and repairs, and rental expenditures), and the Supplies, 
Property, and Debt Service categories ($330,766 primarily due to savings in general supplies and equipment 
purchases). 

These positive budget variances are offset by $121,857 (0.36%) in Employee Compensation as a result of 
overtime overages.The Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual is presented on Exhibit D-1, 
following the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

CAPITAL ASSETS ~ 

As of June 30, 2022, the District's capital assets for its governmental $ivities was $68,267,080 less 
accumulated depreciation of $41,369,532 for a net capital assets total of $26,89~48. These capital assets include 
land, buildings and building improvements, equipment and vehicles. Capi_t~;,ssets of the business-type activities 
include capital assets of $129,722 less accumulated depreciation of $120~ Details of the capital assets can be 
found in Note 4 to the financial statements. ~~ 

cAPITAL RESERVE FUND cP 
The District maintains a Capital Reserve Fund for costs i~red for capital projects. The RI law was changed 

in 1998 to allow Housing Aid reimbursement of non-bonded c~I projects paid for out of the District's capital reserve 
Fund. However, the District must document that projec!Neimbursed under this provision of the law are indeed 
supported by properly constituted capital reserve funds~e District, therefore, maintains a separate fund for this 
specific purpose. The funds to support these project\<0'.'tne from contributions from participating Towns. See Exhibit 
E-2 on Page 98 for details on these funds' activities~ 

~ 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES ~<(,,~ 

Al June 30, 2022, the District had.i.G'$1<.g-term liabilities, all related to governmental activities, totaling $21,265,117 
which includes bonds and notes paya.~a;>lionds premiums, and compensated absences. Estimated amounts due within 
one year total $1,925,966. In add~ to these long-term debt obligations, the District also had long-term liabilities 
related to the estimated pollutiop,_~mediation costs ($64,000), the net pension liability ($34,023,634), the net OPEB 
obligation ($630,017), and thlll:'lease liability ($121,989). All of these long-term obligations are recorded in the 
Government-wide Stateme~f Net Position. Details of the long-term debt obligations can be found in Notes 6, 7, 10, 
12, 13, and 15. g;."?' 

Q 
NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET (FY 2023) 

• $2,068,975 of the General Fund's fund balance was appropriated for spending in the 2022-23 budget 
• An additional $1,415,615 was reassigned by the School Committee from the General Fund's fund balance for 

capital projects 
• In the aggregate, budgeted member Town contributions to the District were level funded at prior year amounts 
• Level funding in FY23 has resulted in significant budget strain due to inflation pressure on expenses 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all those with an 
interest in the CHARIHO Regional School District's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in 
this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to: 

Director of Administration and Finance 
CHARIHO Regional School District 

455A Switch Road 
Wood River Junction, RI 02894 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Due from federal and state grants 
Internal balances 

Prepaid expenses 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Investments on deposit for sinking fund payments 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, including 

capital assets not being depreciated of $538,543 
Lease asset 
Claims deposit 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows of resources - pension related 
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB related 
Deferred charge on refunding 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

$ 11,443,355 
829,658 

1,234,011 
(72,784) 
161,615 

13,595,855 

6,076,197 

$ 637,812 

119,026 
72,784 

829,622 

# 
26,897,548 ~in 

119,654 ~ ~ --
4,030,831 ,<,._~~---

37,124,2~ --~9~,2~7~2 ~-
9,JJR696 

~<?:) 33,710 
Cj 473,500 

~~ 9,700,906 
v 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources ~ ~ 

Liabilities ~ ,j/' 
60,420,991 838,894 

Current Liabilities f_v~ 
Accounts payable ~~ 
Accrued expenses (:j 
Unearned revenue '$;"~ 
Current portion of lease liabilitx._. "~ 
Current portion oflong-tem1~ities 

Total Current Liabilities «,0 
N L . b'l' -~"-oncurrent rn 1 1h 

Pollution remed~ obligation 
Net pension liab~ 
OPEB liability 
Lease liability, net of current portion 
Long-term liabilities 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources - pension related 
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

473,581 
5,118,322 

5,024 
50,218 

1,925,966 
7,573,111 

64,000 
34,023,634 

630,017 
71,771 

19,339,151 
54,128,573 

16,703,433 
207,491 

16,910,924 

78,612,608 

8,198,219 
6,076,197 

(32,466,033) 

$ (18,191,617) 

104,834 

39,817 

144,651 

144,651 

9,272 

684,971 

$ 694,243 

$ 12,081,167 
829,658 

1,353,037 

161,615 
14,425,477 

6,076,197 

26,906,820 
119,654 

4,030,831 
37,133,502 

9,193,696 
33,710 

473,500 
9,700,906 

61,259,885 

578,415 
5,118,322 

44,841 
50,218 

1,925,966 
7,717,762 

64,000 
34,023,634 

630,017 
71,771 

19,339,151 
54,128,573 

16,703,433 
207,491 

16,910,924 

78,757,259 

8,207,491 
6,076,197 

(31,781,062) 

$ (17,497,374) 

A-1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial st(ltements. 
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Functions/Programs 
Governmental activities: 

Educational services 
Unallocated depreciation 

Interest and amortization expense 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type activities: 
Non-major enterprise funds 

Lunch fund 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Totals 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Prosram Revenues 
Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Chanses in Net Position 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and ~ernmental Business-type 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions <¢.~" Activities Activities 

~ 
$ 61,343,269 $ 3,390,781 $ 7,118,827 $ '<,,«,,_· $ (50,833,661) $ $ 

2,803,472 ~" (2,803,472) 
906,732 2,553,269 &'.,j!:- 1,646,537 

65,053,473 3,390,781 9,672,096 s:, (51,990,596) 

0'<1 
~Cj 

84,369 80,566 0' .. (3,803) 
1,219,010 16,617 1,lii2,s22 390,129 
1,303,379 97,183 ,t'->i,592,522 386,326 

t- $ (51,990,596) 386,326 $ 66,356,852 $ 3,487,9~ $ 11,264,618 .. 
d) 

General Revenues: ti;,"' 
Town contnbutrons, des amount for capital and debt service 53,886,976 
Intergovcmmenta~ enue 3,084,147 
Investment ca~qs 45,231 
Miscellanc~'i-- 66,467 

<::)~ Total General Revenues 57,082,821 

Change in Net Position 5,092,225 386,326 

Net Position - Beginning {23,283,842) 307,917 

Net Position - Ending $ {18,191,617) $ 694,243 $ 

A-2 

Total 

(50,833,661) 
(2,803,472) 
1,646,537 

(51,990,596) 

(3,803) 
390,129 

386,326 

(51,604,270) 

53,886,976 
3,084,147 

45,231 
66,467 

57,082,821 

5,478,551 

(22,975,925) 

(17,497,374) 

Tlte accompanying notes are an integral part of tltese financial statements. 
13 



CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

General 
Fund 

Debt Service 
Bond Sinking 

Fund 

Non-major 
Governmental 

Funds 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash on deposit for sinking fund payments 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Due from federal and state 
Due from other funds 

Claims deposit 

$ 7,466,390 

829,658 
45,565 

1,163,448 
4,030,831 

161,615 

$ $ 3,976,965 
6,076,197 

1,188,446 
173,476 

Prepaid expenses 

Total Assets $ 13,697,507 $ 6,076,197 $ s,F87 

~" Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities 
Q;-<i; 
~ !0«;$ Accmmts payable $ 

Accrued expenses 
Unearned revenue 

Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Non-spendable 
Restricted 

247,909 
5,046,376 

$ 

~-­
~ --

eiOiJ,608 
5,294,285 ,fJf 13,608 

~Cj 

4,19~ 
6,062,589 '?" --

Committed -~9,668 
Unassigned ,<._~721,108 

162,007 
71,946 
5,024 

1,396,100 

1,635,077 

994,645 
2,709,165 

3,703,810 Total Fund Balances ~~ 8,403,222 6,062,589 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ~~ $ 13,697,507 $ 6,076,197 $ 5,338,887 
0 

Amounts reporled for governmental activi~~~he statement of net position differ because: 
Fund Balance ofTot~vernmcntal Funds 

Capital assets, np~cumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities 
are not finan~'lesources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 

Pension ai..~PEB related deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net position 
not a~le to the current period therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 

Deferred charge on refunding of bonds is deferred and amortized over the life of 
related debt in the governmental activities, but is reported as other financing use 
in the year of issuance in the governmental funds 

Long-term liabilities and related items are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 

Net effect of right of use leases due to implementation ofGASB 87 

The following liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds: 

Net pension and OPEB liabilities 

Pollution remediation obligation 

Accrued interest on long-term debt obligations 

Deferred inflows of resources are acquisitions of net position that are not applicable 

to the current period and therefore arc not repotted in the governmental funds 

Net Position of Governmental Activities (A-1) 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 11,443,355 
6,076,197 

829,658 
1,234,011 
1,336,924 
4,030,831 

161,615 

$ 25,112,591 

$ 409,916 
5,118,322 

5,024 
1,409,708 

6,942,970 

4,192,446 
7,057,234 
5,198,833 
1,721,108 

18,169,621 

$ 25,112,591 

$ 18,169,621 

26,897,548 

9,227,406 

473,500 

(21,265,117) 

(2,335) 

(34,653,651) 

(64,000) 

(63,665) 

(16,910,924) 

$ (18,191,617) 

B-1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Revenues 
Contributions of participating towns 
Intergovernmental 
Tuition 
Interest income 
Contributions and donations 
Miscellaneous 
Non-public transportation offset 
Intergovernmental pension contribution 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

Current: 
Employee compensation 
Employee benefits 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

General 
Fund 

Debt Service 
Bond Sinking 

Fund 

$ 53,886,976 $ 

3,127 

Non-major 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 817,372 
5,655,848 

259,854 

1,770,827 
3,390,781 

42,104 
1,458 

66,467 
253,478 

3,115,088 

62,527,179 

__ ----.,::# 
3,~ '--6,-73-3-,0-7-4 

~<?? 
<:--0 

1,023,089 
418,355 

Purchased professional and technical services 
Purchased property services 

34,407,019 -~ 
16,000,31?-,"I:', 

1,599,:!;!Y 
66.f<z65 

,i;g'r§,127 
,..,.<S,537,367 

473,434 

Other purchased services 
Supplies 
Miscellaneous 
Capital Outlays 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest expense 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Before Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

.:::;v 86,873 

01?' 273,042 

~ t­~«; 
378,452 

29,600 
62,597,293 

(70,114) 

96,695 
340,191 
144,363 

1,544,413 

1,045,000 
966,666 

6,052,206 

3,127 680,868 

$ 

B-2 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

54,704,348 
7,426,675 
3,390,781 

45,231 
261,312 
66,467 

253,478 
3,115,088 

69,263,380 

35,430,108 
16,418,670 
2,072,667 

666,265 
7,715,822 
1,877,558 

231,236 
1,817,455 

1,423,452 
996,266 

68,649,499 

613,881 

00 
~1?' 

~1?' 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) «_Q~ 

Transfers in ~ 535,563 1,468,567 2,004,130 
Transfers out ~ 

Net Other Financing Sources (Use~ 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance - End of Year $ 

(1,424,712) 

(1,424,712) 

(1,494,826) 

9,898,048 

535,563 

538,690 

5,523,899 

(579,418) 

889,149 

1,570,017 

2,133,793 

(2,004,130) 

613,881 

17,555,740 

8,403,222 $ 6,062,589 $ 3,703,810 $ 18,169,621 

The accompanying notes are an integral part lJf these financial statements, 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
B-3 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (B-2) 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (A-2) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Net Change in Fuud Balances - Total Governmental Funds (B-2) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the government-wide statement of activities the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense 
exceeded capital outlays in the current period. ~ ~«; 

(<:; 
The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to go~<?iiental 
funds, while the principal repayment of long-term debt consumes the c~llt financial 
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has ~effect on the 
government-wide statement of activities. This amount is the net ~t of these differences. 

gf 
Amortization of bond premium and deferred charge on re~~~g is reported in the 
government-wide statement of activities, but is not rep~)! in the governmental funds. 

'?' 
The change in accrued interest on long-term debt.~gations is reported in the 
government-wide statement of activities. but i~t~;ported in the governmental funds. 

0 
Differences in reporting of right of use 1$s in accordance with GASB 87. 

'S''?' 
The change in OPEB liability as Jas claims and judgments recorded in the 
government-wide statement o~@'fi";ities does not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, is~t reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. 

~ 
Net effect of GASB 68~rovisions on the government-wide financial statements. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (A-2) 

$ 613,881 

(1,232,452) 

1,499,460 

82,857 

6,677 

(2,335) 

34,350 

4,089,787 

$ 5,092,225 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash 

Due from federal and state grants 

Due from other funds 

Total Current Assets 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

$ 

Lunch 
Fund 

Business-type Activities 
Non-Major 
Proprietary 

Funds 

225,644 $ 

C-1 

Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 

637,812 
119,026 
138,135 

894,973 

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 9,272 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Unearned revenue 

Due to other funds 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Investment in capital assets 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position $ 

144,571 

144,571 

9,272 
516,550 

525,822 $ 

233,852 

80 

65,351 

65,431 

65,431 

168,421 

168,421 $ 

904,245 

104,834 
39,817 
65,351 

210,002 

210,002 

9,272 
684,971 

694,243 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

C-2 

Operating Revenues 

Charges for usage and service 

Intergovernmental 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Instruction 
Operations 
Fringe benefits 

Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 

Net Position - End of Year 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Business-type Activities 
Non-Major Total 

Lunch Proprietary Proprietary 
Fund Funds Funds 

$ 16,617 $ 80,566 $ 97,183 
1,592,522 

1,609,139 

135,693 

$ 525,822 $ 

~566 

84,369 

(3,803) 

172,224 

168,421 

1,592,522 

1,689,705 

57,318 
1,242,817 

2,214 
1,030 

1,303,379 

386,326 

307,917 

$ 694,243 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Lunch 
Fund 

Business-type Activities 
Non-Major 
Proprietary 

Funds 

C-3 

Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Cash received from customers $ 1,587,110 $ 80,566 
(60,861) 
(24,757) 

$ 1,667,676 
Cash paid to employees 

Cash paid to suppliers 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Advances to other funds 

Net Cash Used in Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities 

Acquisition of fixed assets 

Net Cash Used in Capital Financing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 

Cash - Beginning of Year 
~<:) 

Cash - End of Year 
~"?' 

~~ 
~~ 

Reconciliation of Change in Net Position to ~"(-
0 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activ~ 

Change in net position ~ 

Adjustments to reconcile: «_Q 
Depreciation ~,(._ 
(Increase) in due from feder~ state grants 
Increase in accounts payabi~ 
(Decrease) in accrued expenses 

(Decrease) in unearned revenue 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

(1,198,490) 

388,620 (5,052) 

~~ 
( 67,696) ~~,,_. °" _ __,(=15=6) 

(67,~ --~(15~6) 

~ 
0~-fio,320) 

gfc; (I 0,320) 

c,_;'5 

~~ 
si5 

$ 

$ 

$ 

310,604 

101,564 

412,168 

390,129 

1,030 
(21,985) 
19,475 

(29) 

$ 

$ 

(5,208) 

230,852 

225,644 

(3,803) 

80 
(1,329) 

388,620 Ca$~...,.(5.,,,0-5_.,2) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(60,861) 
(1,223,247) 

383,568 

(67,852) 

(67,852) 

(10,320) 

(10,320) 

315,716 

332,416 

637,812 

386,326 

1,030 
(21,985) 
19,555 
(1,329) 

(29) 

383,568 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the Chariho Regional School District (the District) conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following notes to the basic financial statements are an 
integral part of the District's basic financial statements. 

REPORTING ENTITY 

The Chariho Regional School District was formed through enabling legislation of the State of Rhode 
Island for the purpose of operating elementary and secondary schoo!t~ithin the Towns of 
Charlestown, Richmond and Hopkinton. The District is governed by an ~ed School Committee. 

~ 
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the U n~tates of America, these basic 
financial statements present the financial position and results 0~4},erations of the Chariho Regional 
School District. ~ 

cP 
In evaluating how to define the government for finll~al reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units. The decis~foYo include a potential component unit in the 
reporting entity was made by applying the criteri~t forth in Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financia~porting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASE 
Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Under GASB~tement No. 61, a legally separate entity is required to 
be included as a component unit if it is fi~:ttiy dependent upon the primary government and there is 
a financial benefit or burden relationsl\_i:e,~resent. The primary government is financially accountable 
ifit appoints the voting majority of&)"organization's governing board and (1) it is able to impose its 
will on that organization or (2)_~ is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or impose specifi~~ncial burdens on, the primary government. A potential component 
unit has a financial benefit~'burden relationship with the primary government if, for example, any 
one of the following co~itfons exists: 

'.'-
a. The primary g~ment is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources. 

<) 
b. The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance 

the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization. 

c. The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization. 

The financial statements do not include any component units. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting 
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The 
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. 
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to ex~al parties for goods or 
services. (<;"~ 

~ 
Fund Financial Statements ,<...<v«,, 

~ 
Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized i~unds each of which is considered to 
be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for b~oviding a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts which constitute its assets, deferred outflows$ resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/e~penses. Funds are organized into three major 
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiducia:,@'An emphasis is placed on major funds within the 
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund~onsidered major ifit is the primary operating fund 
of the District or meets the following criteria:~<:> 

\" 
a) Total assets and deferred outflows ofJ.£'cmrces, liabilities and deferred inflows ofresources, 

revenues, or expenditures/expen~~fthat individual, governmental or enterprise fund are at 
least IO percent of the corres11~ng total for all funds of that category or type, and 

~ 
b) Total assets and deferre\l,___~~ows ofresources, liabilities and deferred inflows ofresources, 

revenues, or expendi~ll/expenses of the individual, governmental fund or enterprise fund 
are at least 5 perc~ of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds 
combined. iJ" 

Q 
c) Management may also designate a fund as major if it believes the fund is particularly 

important to the users of the financial statements. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

The funds of a financial reporting entity are described below: 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District and is always classified as a major fund. 
It is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted 
for in other funds. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
committed or restricted to expenditures for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 

Debt Service Funds ~ 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of r}l.&\>'%rces that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned for the payment of principal and interesl ~'if long-term obligations of 
governmental funds. "'.0 

$' Capital Project Funds O~ 

CJ 
Capital Project Funds are used to account for and r~ financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital ou~~~, including the acquisition or construction of 
capital facilities and other capital assets. :-::,9' 

'\"' 
Permanent Funds 'S;"Q 

(-.."cf 
The Permanent Funds account for ~~ held by the District pursuant to trust agreements. The 
principal portion of this fund type 1~t remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the 
objectives of the fund. 'S;""?-0 

Proprietary Funds ~ ~tf 
0 

Proprietary funds are~~ to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These 
activities are finan~primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on 
net income meas~ment similar to the private sector. Operating revenues of the Proprietary Funds 
consist of customer charges for uses and services and certain other miscellaneous revenues. All other 
revenues of the Proprietary Funds are considered non-operating sources ofrevenue. Proprietary Funds 
include Enterprise and Internal Service Funds. During the year ended June 30, 2022 the District 
maintained seven Enterprise Funds. The District does not have Internal Service Funds. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

GOVERNMENTALFUNDS(CONTINUED) 

Fiduciary Funds (Not Included in Government-wide Statements) 

Fiduciary Funds 

The District does not have Fiduciary Funds. 

Major and Non-Major Funds ~ ~«; 
The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows: «;--«; 

«.,«., 
Fund 

Major: 

General Fund: 

Brief Description ~,<::. 
0~ 

gf() 

See above for description.~ e:;'5 
~ 

Debt Service Fund: Debt Service Bond Sink~g Fund is considered a major fund and is used to 
accumulate funds~~l'-th~ future retirement of the Qualified School 
Construction B~VS-

Proprietary Fund: Lunch fund4:-Younts for the operation of the school breakfast and lunch 
program~he Chariho Regional School District. This fund did not meet 
the cr~a for reporting as a major fund however, management has elected 
to ~ent the fund as a major fund. 

o«:-
Non-Major: ~ «. 

~ 
Special Revei#, 

Debt Service: 

Capital Projects: 

Proprietary: 

Grant programs including federal grants, state grants, and private grants. 
The District currently maintains fifty-three (53) special revenue funds. 

Member Towns Debt Service Fund. 

Capital Projects Housing Aid Fund, Capital Projects Member Towns 
Contributions Fund and R YSE Capital Project Fund. 

Night School Remedial, Adult Education Program, Adult Continuing 
Education, Athletics Program, CTC Programs, and Before School Program. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

MEASUREMENT Focus 

On the Government-wide Statement ofNet Position and the Statement of Activities both governmental 
and business-type activities (proprietary funds) are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus as defined in item (b) below. 

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus (modified accrual) 
or the economic resources measurement focus (full accrual) is used as appropriate: 

~ 
(a) All governmental funds utilize a current financial resources measu~nt focus. Only 

current financial assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, ~deferred inflows of 
resources are generally included on their balance sheets. Their 013~ing statements present 
sources and uses of available spendable financial resources ~mg a given period. These 
funds use fund balance as their measure of available spe~e financial resources at the 
end of the period. cP 

g:/ 
(b) The proprietary fund utilizes an economic resoui:p~'fueasurement focus. The accounting 

objectives of this measurement focus are th~'determination of net income, financial 
position and cash flows. All assets and defe~ outflows of resources, and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources (whethe~<clirrent or noncurrent) associated with their 
activities are reported. Proprietary fun~ !itjuity is classified as net position. 

~ 
BASIS OF ACCOU/VTIIVG ~~«) 

0 
In the Government-wide State~fofNet Position and Statement of Activities both governmental and 
business-like activities are nrl!Wnted using the full accrual basis of accounting. Under the full accrual 
basis of accounting, revep,®~ are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability 
is incurred or econo~ "asset used, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues, 
expenses, gains, lo~f.ll!, assets, and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities, and deferred inflows 
of resources resl{i.'t!ng from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the 
exchange takes place. Proprietary funds also utilize the full accrual basis of accounting. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTTNG (CONTINUED) 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
measurable and available. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the 
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or within a reasonable time thereafter 
to pay current liabilities. The District has determined available to mean within 60 days. Expenditures 
(including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for debt 
principal and interest and compensated absences which are recognized whel),~e. 

~-:::y 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from ~6perating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services i~~nection with the proprietary 
fund's principal operation. The principal operating revenues of~ enterprise funds are charges for 
services provided in accordance with the fund's purpose. Ope;~g expenses for the enterprise funds 
include the costs of providing the services, including admini~l;~ and depreciation on capital assets. 
All other revenue and expense items not meeting these ~ria are reported as nonoperating revenues 
and expenses. ~ 0 

$)'-
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/l~ows OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND 
BALANCE 'S;'Q 

~"?' 
Cash Equivalents {.<,,~ 

~ 
For purposes of the cash flow st#ent, all investments with original maturities of three months or 
less when purchased are consi~tl to be cash equivalents. 

~ 
Accounts Receivable «.O'Q-

'.'\ 
In the Government-~e statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet 
received. Majoi<)~;ivable balances for the governmental activities include intergovernmental 
receivables, tuition and Medicaid reimbursements. 

In the fund financial statements, receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as 
grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and 
available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are reported as unearned in the fund 
financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but recognized as earned in the Government­
wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund material receivables 
consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts 
receivables are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND 
BALANCE (CONTINUED) 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed in governmental funds. 

~ 
Certain unexpended and unencumbered appropriations for incomplete ~%cts are carried over to 
succeeding years. Such continuing appropriations are accounted for i\~r to encumbrances. Other 
unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. "-«_,V 

Investments $ 
0~ 

CJ 
The District may invest in various types of investments-Q~fiich are stated at fair value. Fair value is 
defined as the price that would be received to sell a~~et or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the m~"lrement date. Realized and unrealized gains and 
losses are reported as investment income. '?' 

'S;'Q 
Compensated Absences ~ '?' 

~ 
Under the terms of various contract# policies, District employees are granted paid time off based 
on length of service. The District~olicy is to recognize the cost of sick leave and personal days in 
governmental funds when pai~d on the accrual basis in proprietary funds. The amount of earned 
but unpaid sick leave and p~~iial days relating to governmental fund employees is recorded in long­
term liabilities in the Go~ment-wide financial statements. 

y_"­
Capital Assets dJ' 

Q 
The accounting treatment over capital assets depends on whether the assets are used in governmental 
fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the Government-wide 
or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide Statements 

In the Government-wide financial statements, long-lived assets are accounted for as capital assets. 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, 
except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. Historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets recorded. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND 
BALANCE (CONTINUED) 

Government-wide Statements (Continued) 

Capital assets for capitalization are defined by the District, as assets with an initial individual cost 
of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded, as an un~ated expense in the 
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in t~atement of Net Position. 
Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives u~fig the straight-line method of 
depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of as~t<;js'as follows: 

Buildings............................................................ . ~ 50 years 
Building improvements ...................................... cPlo -15 years 
Lan~ improvements ...................................... 'v<)j 15 years 
Veh!cles .................................................... ~.<a... 5 - 7 years 
Eqmpment.. ......................................... 

0
Q\........ 5 - 15 years 

The District reviews the carrying value ofj@~ng-lived assets to ensure that any impairment issues 
are identified and appropriately refleR&P in the financial statements. Should the expected cash 
flows be less than the carrying v~, an impairment loss would be recognized to reduce the 
carrying value. No impairment l~s were recognized during the June 30, 2022 year-end. 

0 
Fund Financial Statemen~~ 

~ 
In the fund financial ~~<?:rnents, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted 
for as capital o~t!~expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used 
in proprietary ~'operations are accounted for the same as in the Government-wide statements. 

Q 
Bond Premiums and Issuance Costs 

In the governmental funds, bond premiums and issuance costs are treated as period costs in the year 
the bonds are issued. Bond issuance costs are included in debt service expenditures and bond premiums 
are reflected as other financing sources in the governmental funds financial statements. 

In the Government-wide statement of net position, bond premiums are deferred and amortized over 
the term of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bond premiums are presented as an addition to 
the face amount of the bonds payable. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND 
BALANCE (CONTINUED) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate section represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until that later date. At June 30, 2022 the Distri:~~orted $9,227,406 of 
deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB in the Government-wid~tement of net position. 
The deferred outflows of resources related to pension and OPEB res~from differences between 
expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inmf!'g-, This amount is deferred and 
included in pension/OPEB expense in a systematic and rational~'\hner over a period equal to the 
average of the expected remaining service lives of all emp~es that are provided with benefits 
through the pension and OPEB plans (active employees an_6Cffiactive employees). At June 30, 2022 
the District also reported $473,500 of deferred outflow1_~ated to a deferred charge on refunding in 
the Government-wide statement of net position. The g_~red charge on refunding is the unamortized 
balance of the difference between the carrying v~ of the refunded debt and the new debt. This 
amount is deferred and amortized over the short~t' the life of the refunded or the refunding debt. 

~ 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of fi~cial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This ~rate section represents the acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and therefo;:~·fll not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
a later date. At June 30, 2022 the ~1fict reported $16,910,924 of deferred inflows related to pension 
and OPEB in the Government-~ statement of net position. The deferred inflow of resources related 
to pension and OPEB result~·m differences between expected and actual experience, changes in 
assumptions or other inpue>«This amount is deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources 
in the years in which tJ;il: ~mounts become available . 

.ft 
Interfund Trunsa{/rons 

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the District have been classified and reported as 
follows: 

Reciprocal interfund activities: 

• Interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and 
interfund payables in borrower funds. 

• Interfund services are reported as revenues in the seller fund and as expenditures 
on expenses in the purchasing fund. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND 
BALANCE (CONTINUED) 

Interfund Transactions (Continued) 

Non-reciprocal interfund activities: 

• Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing uses in 
the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in th~nds receiving 
transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after nol¾\"perating revenues 
and expenses. «;-<;; 

X,, 
• Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the fu~"i?sponsible for particular 

expenditures or expenses to other funds •• ~~~initially paid for them. 
Reimbursements are not displayed separately wia-91 the financial statements. 

Net Position/Fund Balance 0'0«; 
~ 

Government-wide Statements -i><:) 
~ 

Net position is classified and displayed ~"'ibe following three components: 

~ 
(a) Net investment in capital ass~Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 

assets, net of accumulated ~~ciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, note~ other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or impr~~ent of those assets. 

~ 
(b) Restricted net R~2ion - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use 

either by I 2 bternal groups such as creditors, granters, contributors, or laws or 
regulatio~<.b-'f other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 

(c) Unrestricted net position - The remaining net position that does not meet the definition 
of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets". 

Fund Statements 

Fund balance is classified in the governmental funds in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. Fund balance is classified as 
non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned as described below: 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND 
BALANCE (CONTINUED} 

Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued) 

Fund Statements (Continued) 

• Non-Spendable - the amount of fund balance that cannot be spent because it is either not in 
spendable form or there is a legal or contractual requirement for the funds to remain intact. 
"Not in spendable form" includes items that are not expected to be ~verted to cash within 
one year. ~-.f(; 

• Restricted - includes amounts that are restricted for speci[~4urposes. Fund balance is 
reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use ~esources are either externally 
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of ~r governments, or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislati~ 

• Committed - includes amounts that can be use~y for the specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the Dist~'!>s highest level of decision-making authority. 
Those committed amounts cannot be used f~y other purpose unless the District removes or 
changes the specified use by taking the Slij:!l'°\l type of action it employed to previously commit 
those amounts. The Chariho Region!!_~'hool Committee is considered the highest decision­
making authority and therefore im~~ constraints by a formal action by vote. This constraint 
must be imposed prior to the ywend, but the specific amount may be determined at a later 
date. ~~ 

• Assigned - the amoun~of 
0 

d balance that includes the portion of the spendable fund balance 
that reflects funds int d to be used by the government for specific purposes assigned by 
information operaµ._~ planning. The assigned fund balance represents a plan for spending 
the amount, buJ; ~s not restricted or committed. The authority to assign fund balance is 
designated ~l) Chariho Regional School Committee. 

• Unassign~-the amount of fund balance that is in the General Fund and includes all spendable 
amounts that are not otherwise contained in the classifications listed above, and therefore, not 
subject to any constraints or intended use. Unassigned amounts are available for any purpose. 
These are current resources available for which there are no external or self-imposed 
limitations or set spending plan. Although there is generally no set spending plan for the 
unassigned portion, there is a need to maintain a certain funding level. Unassigned fund 
balance is commonly used for emergency expenditures not previously considered. In addition, 
the resources classified as unassigned can be used to cover expenditures for revenues not yet 
received. At the end of each year, the Director of Administration and Finance shall maintain 
an unassigned fund balance of a minimum of two percent (2%) and a maximum of four percent 
(4%) of general fund actual expenditures from the previous year. The School Committee shall 
strive to maintain an unassigned fund balance of three percent (3%) of general fund actual 
expenditures from the previous year. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FuND 
BALANCE (CONTINUED} 

Net Position/Fund Balance (Continaed) 

The District maintains a spending policy in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This policy states the District shall, when 
possible, expend funds beginning with those funds that have the highest level of restriction first, and 
will spend those funds with the lowest level ofrestriction last. It shall be the D,i~tor of Administration 
and Finance's responsibility to ensure the District's expenditures are apprPPl'!1itely classified based on 
the restrictions (both external and internal) of the revenue and fund b%,~'8:(s) in accordance with the 
above policy. ,<,,0 

~ 
Proprietary fund net position is classified the same as in the G~nment-wide statements. 

cP 
Governmental Expenditures ..::::,«f 

0 
In the fund financial statements, the operating. ~nditures are broken out into nine functional 
categories. Below is a description of these cate~es and related activity charged to them: 

'S"Q 
• Employee Compensation - A~u'ii'ts paid to District employees, including personnel 

substituting for those in perm~positions. 

0 
• Employee Benefits -~I ~nts paid by the District on behalf of employees (amounts not 

included in gross sa\a ut in addition to that amount). Such payments are fringe benefits 
and,_ although not 1!J!' directly to employees, nevertheless are part of the cost of personnel 
services. «; 

~" 
• Purchased~essional and Technical Services- Services that by their nature can be performed 

only by pt£~ns or firms with specialized skills and knowledge. 

• Purchased Property Services - Services purchased to operate, repair, maintain, and rent 
property owned or used by the District. These services are performed by persons other than 
District employees. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND 
BALANCE (CONTINUED) 

Governmental Expenditures (Continued) 

• Other Purchased Services - Amounts paid for services rendered by organizations or 
professionals not on the payroll of the District (separate from professional and technical 
services or property services). 

~ 
• Supplies - Amounts paid for items that are consumed, are wo~~t, or have deteriorated 

through use or items that lose their identity through fabricatio?<:, 6.fmcorporation into different 
or more complex units or substances. "-<!) 

-t:-
• Capital Outlays'- Property- Expenditures for acquiri ipital assets, including land, existing 

buildings, existing infrastructure assets, and equi nt. Amounts recorded here may not , 
necessarily meet the definition for recording a capital asset in the Government-wide 
financial statements. ~ 0 

Q' 
• Miscellaneous-Amounts for goods an6~ices not otherwise classified into one of the above 

categories. ,.jf 
~ 

• Debt Service -Amounts paid ~e principal or interest on debt obligations. 

0<!) 
Pensions ':s:''?' 

For purposes of measuri~t: net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources n;l~ba to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Em~! ~s' Retirement System plan (ERS) and the additions to/deductions from ERS' 
fiduciary net posi · have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by ERS. For this 
purpose, benefit p yments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability ( asset), deferred outflows ofresources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) of Rhode Island and additions 
to/deductions from MERS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by MERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported 
at fair value. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Change in Accounting Principles 

In fiscal year 2022, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 87, Leases. This statement enhances the relevance and consistency of information of 
the District's leasing activities. It establishes requirements for lease accounting based on the principle 
that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessee is required to recognize a 
lease liability and an intangible right use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and deferred inflow of resources. 

{<;~ 
Recently Issued Accounting Standards ~"I. 

~ 
The following are recently issued governmental accounting stan~ which may be applicable in 
~re~ra: ~ 

0~ 
• GASB Statement No. 91 - Conduit Debt Oblig&~s, effective for the District's fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. ::\ 0 
$)'-

• GASB Statement No. 94 - Public-Priv~and Public-Private Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Agreements, effective for t~istrict's fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 

::\ "?'-
• GASB Statement No. 96 ~scription-Based !reformation Technology Arrangements 

("SBITA ''), effective for the :!O's,rict's fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 
"g--0 

• GASB Statement No . .,.~ Omnibus 2022, effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 
30, 2023. ~ 

«o 
• GASB State1!!5:'itt No. 100 -Accounting/or Changes and Error Corrections, effective for the 

District's~~ year ending June 30, 2024. 

• GASB Statement No. 101 - Compensated Absences, effective for the District's fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2025. 

The impact of these pronouncements on the District's financial statements has not been determined. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and asswnptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. ~ 

EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE STATEM~~~F NET POSITION AND 
GOVERNMENTALFUNDBALANCESHEET ~~ 

The governmental balance sheet includes a reconciliation betwe~~'\~ balances-total governmental 
funds and net position-governmental activities as reported in~'Government-wide statement of net 
position. One element of that reconciliation explains that "~g-term liabilities and related items are 
not due and payable in the current period and therefore~ not reported in the governmental funds." 
The details of the difference are as follows: ~ 0 

0'-
Bonds payable ~ 
Notes payable ~Q 
Bond premiums, net of accumulated amort~ion 
Compensated absences ~<i) 

cJ<J 
'S''?' Net adjustment 

$ (17,444,000) 
(279,466) 
(973,528) 

(2,568,123) 

$ (21,265,117) 
~'?' 

Another element of the #nciliation states that "net pension and OPEB liabilities are not due and 
payable in the curren~nod and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds." The details of 
the difference are~llows: 

Net pension liability 

OPEB liability 

Net adjustment 

$ (34,023,634) 
(630,017) 

$ (34,653,651) 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF 
REVENUES, EXPENDJTURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

The governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances includes 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental fonds and changes in net 
position of governmental activities as reported in the Government-wide statement of activities. One 
element of that reconciliation explains that Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated ~ their useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. The details of the difference are as fol~1: 

~ 
$-'\&571,020 J- (2,803,472) 

Capital outlays 
Depreciation expense 

0~ 
Net adjustment gf() $ (1,232,452) 

0-;s 
Another element of the reconciliation states that ~ issuance of long-term debt provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, whil~ principal repayment of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of governmen!_~fu-nds. Neither transactions, however, has any effect 
on the government-wide statement of acti~~'s." The details of the difference are as follows: 

~ 
Decrease in bonds payable (excludin#ased debt) 

Decrease in notes payable obliga:~~ 
Decrease in compensated abs~ 

0~ 
"'-«. 

,f 
NOTE 2- BUDGETAR0&ATA 

Net adjustment 

$ 

$ 

1,045,000 

378,452 
76,008 

1,499,460 

The School District requires an annual budget for the General Fund. The practices used in preparation 
of the 2022 budget differ in certain respects from the presentation of the actual results of operations 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP). The actual results of operations, for purposes of the Statement of Revenues and 
Expenditures, Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis - General Fund, have been adjusted to a basis 
consistent with the School District's budget for 2022. 

Amendments to the operating budget that do not result in additional appropriations may be made by 
means of a transfer. The Director of Administration and Finance has authority to make such transfers 
within departments as well as any transfers up to $1,500. Transfers over $1,500 must be approved by 
the School Committee. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

CASH DEPOSITS 

The District maintains deposits at local financial institutions. At year-end, the carrying amount of 
such deposits was $12,081,167. The bank balance of these funds was $12,827,315, of which 
$7,845,691 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining balance of$4,981,624 was 
fully collateralized. 

INVESTMENTS 

The District follows the guidance for fair value measurements and discl~~s in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, an ~ounting standard adopted 
by the District in the current year. ~ ~ 

In determining fair value, the District uses various valuati~~~ioaches, as appropriate in the 
circumstances. GASB Statement No. 72 establishes a fair valu~~rarchy for inputs used in measuring 
fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and ~imizes the use of unobservable inputs 
by requiring that the most observable inputs be used ~en available. The fair value hierarchy is 
categorized into three levels based on the inputs as f~~s: 

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted priced in active m~~~ that are accessible at the measurement date for 
identical assets or liabilities. 'S'Q 

'?' 
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted pric~n active markets for identical assets and liabilities that are 

observable either directly ~directly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 
0 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs ~the asset or liability (supported by little or no market activity). 
Level 3 inputs incl management's own assumption about the assumptions that market 
participants wo se in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions about risk). 

«-0 
The following is a de~')ption of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at 
fair value: Q~ 

Mutual funds: Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual funds held by the District 
are open-ended mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These 
funds are required to publish their daily net asset value (NA V) and to transact at that price. The mutual 
funds held by the District are deemed to be actively traded. 

The District has established legal restrictions as to the types of investments that may be held by the 
District. The District may invest in U.S. Treasury Bills, Short-term obligations of U.S. Government 
agencies, Federally Insured or collateralized certificates of deposit, Repurchase agreements 
collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities, State investment pools and Money Market mutual funds 
whose portfolios consist of U.S. Government securities. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED} 

The following table summarizes the investments of the District, at fair value, as of June 30, 2021: 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets Significant Other Significant 

for Identical Observable Unobservable 

Assets Inputs Inputs 

-~(L=e"-ve"-1""1)_ -~(L=e"-ve"-1~2)_ ~(Level3) Total 

~«; 
In~~::~:d~YF::· ::~::~:~overnment Obligation Fund Class V $ 6,076,197 $ f<,, Q,-~- $ ·• $ 6,076,197 

0 
The average rating comprising the mutual fund above as determ~by Standard & Poor's is AAA. 

~ 
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits and Investments. Custod¼!Rredit risk is the risk that in the event of 
a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be return~ it. The collateralization of certificates of 
deposit or repurchase agreements must be in an am~lili of at least 102% of fair market value to the 
amount of the deposit is the District's investment ~cy for custodial credit risk. 

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the ~ hiat changes in market interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. Ge~ritlly, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater 
the sensitivity of its fair value to chang~ market interest rates. It is the policy of the District to limit 
the length of its investment maturitie&,,~order to manage the exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. ":?-0 

'S' 
Credit Risk. Generally, credi~~lc is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the holder om investment. This is measured by assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized rating or_~~~tion. U.S. Government securities or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the 
U.S. Government ~10t considered to have credit risk exposure. 

Concentration ofiredit Risk. The District places the following limits on the maximum percent of 
portfolio it may invest in any one specific instrument: the portfolio shall at all times comprise of at 
least three separate investment instruments; with no one instrument holding more than 50% of total 
fund principal. Furthermore, at least 30% of the invested funds shall be in instruments that can be 
redeemed by the District on demand within one day. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 4- CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 

Land $ 

Beginning 
Balance 
7/1/2021 

538,543 

Increases 

$ 

Decreases 

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 538,543 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated Q;-«J 
206~ 

1,1._~'S11 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

59,883,057 
2,400,596 

Land improvements 

Vehicles 

3,490,731 ~~2,968 

383,133 i:;;"'o,__ __ _ 
66,157,517§{ 1,571,020 

(-., 0 
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation For 

Buildings and improvements 34,~~1560 
Equipment l'i647,850 
Land improvements ~~,240,630 

Vehicles (-., '?" 188,920 

2,606,697 
71,799 

111,865 
13,111 

2,803,472 Total Accumulated Depreciation ~{(,,~ 38,566,060 

Governmental Activities Capital Ass•.C~et $ 28,130,000 $ (1,232,452) $ 
~'('~ ---

Business-Type Activities: ~~ 
~ 

Capital Assets Being DeP.~ted 

Equipment ~x__ 
Total Capital Asse•-~ng Depreciated 
Less: Accumulated~~~ciation For 

Equipment 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 

$ 119,420 

119,420 

119,420 

119,420 

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net _$ ___ _ 

$ 10,302 $ 

10,302 

1,030 

1,030 

$ 9,272 $ 
a.a.--= 

Ending 
Balance 
6/30/2022 

$ 538,543 

538,543 

60,089,598 
3,572,107 
3,683,699 

383,133 

67,728,537 

37,095,357 
1,719,649 
2,352,495 

202,031 

41,369,532 

$ 26,897,548 

$ 129,722 

129,722 

120,450 

120,450 

$ 9,272 
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 4- CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Depreciation is for all educational activities presented separately on the Statement of Activities as 
unallocated depreciation totaling $2,803,472. 

Business-Type Activities: 

School lunch 

Total Business-Type Activities Depreciation Expense 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

$ 

$g,,,_<Ji~030 

"<v«., 
J' ~ 

The District had interfund transfers totaling $2,004,130 d~g the year ended June 30, 2022. The 
composition of these interfund transfers was as follows:V<lf 

'S;'Q 
~'?' Debt Service Bond Sinking Fund ~ 

Capital Project Funds ~~«) 
Special Revenue Funds 0 
Member Towns - Debt Service F~)l?' 

Total ~~'?' 

General Fund 

~0 
s.>' 
~ 

$ 

$ 

Transfers 
In 

535,563 
1,461,068 

7,499 

2,004,130 

$ 

$ 

Transfers 
Out 

1,424,712 

36,356 
7,499 

535,563 

2,004,130 

«.o 
Interfund balances r~~sent short-term advances from one fund to another fund. The advances may 
represent balance9,..~ulting from operating advances or simply be the result of pooling of financial 
resources to maxih'tize investment income. The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2022 
was as follows: 

Due Due 
From To 

General Fund $ 1,163,448 $ 
Debt Service Bond Sinking Fund 13,608 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 173,476 1,396,100 

Proprietary Funds 138,135 65,351 

Total $ 1,475,059 $ 1,475,059 
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

(a) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) - Teachers 

General Information about the Pension Plau 

Plan Description - Certain employees of the Chariho Regional School District participate in a cost­
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan - the Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 
plan - administered by the Employees' Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (System). 
Under a cost-sharing plan, pension obligations for employees of all employers are pooled and plan 
assets are available to pay the benefits of the employees of any particip~ employer providing 
pension benefits through the plan, regardless of the status of the employ~ payment of its pension 
obligation to the plan. The plan provides retirement and disability be?<,d:ffi' and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries. "-<i) 

~ 
The System issues a publicly available report that inclu~~financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the plans. The report may b~tained at http://www.ersri.org. 

gj 
Benefit Provisions - The level of benefits provided t/1-_~ticipants is established by Chapter 36-10 of 
the General Laws, which is subject to amend~ by the General Assembly. Member benefit 
provisions vary based on service credits accumu~d at dates specified in various amendments to the 
General Laws outlining minimum retirem# age, benefit accrual rates and maximum benefit 
provisions. In general, members accum!'Q~e service credits for each year of service subject to 
maximum benefit accruals of 80% or 7W,'For those hired after June 30, 2012, the benefit accrual rate 
is 1 % per year with a maximum be~ accrual of 40%. Members eligible to retire at September 30, 
2009 may retire with 10 years of s~ce at age 60 or after 28 years of service at any age. The retirement 
eligibility age increases propm;,,~ately for other members reflecting years of service and other factors 
until it aligns with the Socillh._~'curity Normal Retirement Age, which applies to any member with less 
than 5 years of service a~Gtiuly 1, 2012. Members are vested after 5 years of service. 

,<,. 
The plan provides# survivor's benefits for service connected death and certain lump sum death 
benefits. Joint an~survivor benefit provision options are available to members. 

Cost of living adjustments are provided but are currently suspended until the collective plans 
administered by ERSRI reach a funded status of 80%. Until the plans reach an 80% funded status, 
interim cost of living adjustments are provided at four-year intervals commencing with the plan year 
ending June 30, 2016. 

The plan also provides nonservice-connected disability benefits after five years of service and service­
connected disability benefits with no minimum service requirement. 
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 6-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(a) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) - Teachers (Continued) 

General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 

Contributions - The funding policy, as set forth in the General Laws, Section 16-16-22, provides for 
actuarially determined periodic contributions to the plan. For fiscal 2022, Chariho Regional School 
District teachers were required to contribute 3.75% of their annual covered salary, except for teachers 
with twenty or more years of service as of June 30, 2012 must contribute 11~% ftheir annual covered 
salary. The state and the Chariho Regional School District are required to c ibute at an actuarially 
determined rate, 40% of which is to be paid by the state and the remain~ 0% is to be paid by the 
Chariho Regional School District; the rates were 10.75% and 14.50'¾ ~annual covered payroll for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 for the state and the Chariho Re · School District, respectively. 
The Chariho Regional School District contributed $4,360,477 ,177,221 and $4,024,537 for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respecJ;i! y, equal to 100% of the required 
contributions for each year. The State's share of contributi@'for fiscal 2022 was $3,003,221 and is 
reported as on-behalf payments and included in bot!!ffienue and expenditures on the financial 
statements. :'\ Cj 

~" 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferre~utflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources ~() 

:'\ '?' 
At June 30, 2022, the Chariho Regio chool District reported a liability of $33,870,264 for its 
proportionate share of the net pensi ability that reflected a reduction for contributions made by the 
state. The amount recogniz~d by hariho Regional School District as its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability, the relat ate support and the total portion of the net pension liability that was 
associated with the Charih gional School District were as follows: 

0 
Chariho Regional Sch~~istrict proportionate share of the 

net pension liabil~ 
State's proportion~' share of the net pension liability 

associated with the Chariho Regional School District 

Total Net Pension Liability 

$ 33,870,264 

25,117,837 

$ 58,988,101 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, the measurement date, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The Chariho Regional School District's proportion 
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Chariho Regional School District's long­
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers and the state, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021 the Chariho Regional 
School District's proportion was 1.44%. 
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NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(a) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) - Teachers (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Ontflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources (Continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2022 the Chariho Regional School District recognized gross pension 
expense of $1,882,264 and revenue of $882,318 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2022 
the Chariho Regional School District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: ~~ 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

~~ 
«:-,«:; 

$ ~"-efff 60,477 
Difference between expected and actual experience ~~ 339,967 

Changes in assumptions cP 1,418,338 
Netdiflerence between projected and actual earnings g;; 

on pension plan investments ~ 0..::S 
Change in proportion and diflerences between emp~) 

contributions and proportionate share of contr~ns 

Total 
,t 

t­
~0 

Deferred Inflows of Resources "5?-0<;; 
Difference between expected rctual experience 

Changes in assumptions 
O

«;--
Net difference betwee~jftojected and actual earnings 

on pension plan~tments 

Changes in prop6i)!1on and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Total 

1,136,510 

734,673 

$ 7,989,965 

$ (1,094,030) 

(744,843) 

(9,064,248) 

(1,881,950) 

$ (12,785,071) 

The $4,360,477 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the 
Chariho Regional School District contributions in fiscal year 2022 subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent period. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(a) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) - Teachers (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

Thereafter 

Total 

$ (2,335,5_AA) 

(2,01~~9) 
(2~,511) 

"-<ffe,494,420) J'- (177,942) 
0~ (42,079) 

p 
':0<?} 

$ (9,155,583) 
(-,, Cj 

s$' 
Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension lia~ty was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included ~<the measurement: 

(-,, '?' 
Inflation {<,,~ 2.5% 
Salary increases ~~ 3.0% to 13.0% 
Investment rate of return ~~0 7 .0% 

Mortality- variants ofthe&,.~(10) Tables for Healthy and Disabled Retirees projected with Scale 
Ultimate MP16. «,0 

'.\ 
The actuarial assu~ns used in the June 30, 2020 valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2021 and the 
calculation of the gtal pension liability at June 30, 2021 were consistent with the results of an actuarial 
experience study performed as of June 30, 2019. 

The long-term expected rate of return best-estimate on pension plan investments was determined by 
the actuary using a building-block method. The actuary started by calculating best-estimate future 
expected real rates of return ( expected returns net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
for each major asset class, based on a collective summary of capital market expectations from 39 
sources. The June 30, 2021 expected arithmetic returns over the long-term (20 years) by asset class 
are summarized in the following table: 
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NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(a) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) - Teachers (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources (Continued) 

Asset Class 

GROWTH 
Global Equity: 

U.S. Equity 
International Developed Equhy 
Emerging Markets Equity 

Sul>-Total 
Private Growth: 

Private Equity 
Non-Core Real Estate 

0 PP Private Credit 
Sul>-Total 

INCOME 

::;-rield Infrastructure ~Q 

Equity Options ~ I?' 
EMD (50/50 Blend) • .fy"<;;" 
Liquid Credit 0'. 
Private Credit 'f?'-0 
Sul>-Total ~ 

STABILITY ~\?' 
Crisis Protection Cl&r 

Treasury Duratio~ <( 
Systematic Tr~ 
Su]>. Total ~ 

Inflation P}dtection: 
Core Real Estate 
Private Infrastructure 
T!Ps 
Sul>-Total 

Volatility Protection: 
IG Corp Credit 
Sccuritiz.ed Credit 
Absolute Return 
Cash 

Sul>-Total 

Total 

Long-Term 
Target Asset 

Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected Arithmetic 
Real Rate of Return 

{<,~ 
23~-.;: 

~~00~ 
~,·40.00% 

~ c.P 11.25% 
gf 2.25% 

0-V 

d' 05 
1.50% 

15.00% 

1.00% 
1.00% 
2.00% 
2.00% 
2.80% 
3.20% 

12.00% 

5.00% 
5.00% 

10.00% 

3.60% 
2.40% 
2.00% 
8.00% 

3.25% 
3.25% 
6.50% 
2.00% 

15.00% 

100.00% 

5.83% 
6.35% 
8.04% 

9.47% 
5.32% 
9.47% 

3.19% 
5.32% 
5.59% 
1.96% 
3.19% 
3.19% 

-0.32% 
3.39% 

5.32% 
5.81% 
0.30% 

1.14% 
1.14% 
3.39% 

-0.32% 
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(a) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) - Teachers (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Ontflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources (Continued) 

These return assumptions are then weighted by the target asset allocation percentage, factoring in 
correlation effects, to develop the overall long-term expected rate of return best-estimate on an 
arithmetic basis. ~ 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension Ii~~ was 7.0 percent. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assum~'Kat contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that con~tions from the employers will 
be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Bas n those assumptions, the pension 
plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be availabl make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-te xpected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected be~ payments to determine the total pension 
liability. ~ Cj 

0' 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Ass';,Q~ Changes in the Discount Rate - The following 
presents the net pension liability (asset) cal~ted using the discount rate of 7.0 percent as well as 
what the net pension liability (asset) ~~cl?'f,e if it were calculated using a discount rate that is !­
percentage-point lower or 1-percentawuint higher than the current rate. 

00 

1%~~~:e 
6f-D%) 

« 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.0%) 
1% Increase 

(8.0%) 

~ii 42,775,550 $ 33,870,264 $ 22,504,575 

Pension plan fid~ciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued ERSRI financial report. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description - The Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) - an agent multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan - provides certain retirement, disability and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries. MERS was established under Rhode Island General Law and placed 
under the management of the Employee's Retirement System of Rhode Island (ERSRI) Board to 
provide retirement allowances to employees of municipalities, housing P1-ut <!fities, water and sewer 
districts, and municipal police and fire persons that have elected to partici . Benefit provisions are 
subject to amendment by the General Assembly. ~ 

X, 
MERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes~~ncial statements and required 
supplementary . information. This report may be obtaine~~cessing the ERSRI website at 
http://www.ersn.org. O 

SJ 
Benefits Provided - General employees, police off~ and firefighters employed by electing 
municipalities participate in MERS. Eligible employ~ c.:g;come members at their date of employment. 
Anyone employed by a municipality at the time~ municipality joins MERS may elect not to be 
covered. Elected officials may opt to be cove~8'by MERS. Employees covered under another plan 
maintained by the municipality may not bee~ members ofMERS. Police officers and/or firefighters 
may be designated as such by the muni ality, in which case the special contribution and benefit 
provisions described below will appl hem, or they may be designated as general employees with 
no special benefits. Members desi ed as police officers and/or firefighters are treated as belonging 
to a unit separate from the gene~mployees, with separate contribution rates applicable. 

Salary - Salary includes th~:rnber's base earnings plus any payments under a regular longevity or 
incentive plan. Salary e~des overtime, unused sick and vacation leave, severance pay, and other 
extraordinary compe~1ttion. Certain amounts that are excluded from taxable wages, such as amounts 
sheltered under a ~on 125 plan or amounts picked up by the employer under IRC Section 414(h), 
are not excluded !Mm salary. 

Service - Employees receive credit for service while a member. In addition, a member may purchase 
credit for certain periods by making an additional contribution to purchase the additional service. 
Special rules and limits govern the purchase of additional service and the contribution required. 

Final Average Compensation (FAC)- Prior to July 1, 2012 and for general employee members eligible 
to retire as of June 30, 2012, the average was based on the member's highest three consecutive annual 
salaries. Effective July 1, 2012, the average was based on the member's highest five consecutive annual 
salaries. Once a member retires or is terminated, the applicable FAC will be the greater of the 
member's highest three year FAC as of July 1, 2012 or the five year FAC as of the 
retirement/termination date. Monthly benefits are based on one-twelfth of this amount. 

46 



CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 

General Employees 

Members with less than five years of contributory service as of June 30, 2012 and members hired on 
or after that date are eligible for retirement on or after their Social Security_ pormal retirement age 
(SSNRA). /~ 

~~ 
Members who had at least five years of contributory service as of JuP,~, 2012 will be eligible for 
retirement at an individually determined age. This age is the re~&W' of interpolating between the 
member's prior Retirement Date, described below, and the retin::~"ht age applicable to members hired 
after June 30, 2012 as described above. The interpolation ih~sed on service as of June 30, 2012 
divided by projected service at the member's prior Retirern@-f Date. The minimum retirement age is 
59. '0«! 

~Cj 
Members with 10 or more years ofcontributory se~e on June 30, 2012 may choose to retire at their 
prior Retirement Date if they continue to work a~ contribute until that date. If this option is elected, 
the retirement benefit will be calculated usinl?c_~ benefits accrued as ofJune 30, 2012, i.e., the member 
will accumulate no additional defined be~flfs after this date, but the benefit will be paid without any 
actuarial reduction. ~«,,~ · 

0 
Effective July 1, 2015, members ..Jifbe eligible to retire with full benefits at the earlier of their current 
Rhode Island Retirement Se~~y' Act (RIRSA) date described above or upon the attainment of age 
65 with 30 years of service~ 64 with 31 years of service, age 63 with 32 years of service, or age 62 
with 33 years of service.«O 

,<._ 

A member who is ~in five years of reaching their retirement eligibility date and has 20 or more 
years of service, ~y elect to retire at any time with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Prior to July I, 2012, members were eligible for retirement on or after age 58 if they had credit for 10 
or more years of service, or at any age if they had credit for at least 30 years of service. Members 
eligible to retire before July 1, 2012 were not impacted by the changes to retirement eligibility above. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 

General Employees (Continued) 

The annual benefit is equal to 2.00% of the member's monthly FAC for each year of service prior to 
July I, 2012 and 1.00% of the member's monthly FAC for each year of service from July 1, 2012 
through June 30, 2015. For all service after June 30, 2015, the annual beneffi is equal to 1.0% per 
year unless the member had 20 or more years of service as of June 30, 20,1,4.~ ·which case the benefit 
accrual is 2.0% per year for service after June 30, 2015. The benef~~annot exceed 75% of the 
member's FAC. Benefits are paid monthly. ~<v<v 
Other Benefit Provisions ~,$-

00 
Death and disability benefits are also provided to me~rs. A member is eligible for a disability 
retirement provided he/she has credit for at least fr)(_~ears of service or if the disability is work­
rel~ted. Members are not eligible for an ordinary ~'bility benefit if they are eligible for unreduced 
retirement. '?' 

0 
Joint and survivor benefit options are av~~e to retirees. For some employees, a Social Security 
Option is also available where an an~ is paid at one amount prior to age 62, and at a reduced 
amount after age 62, designed to pr~e a level total income when combined with the member's age 
62 Social Security benefit. Benefi~ease upon the member's death. 

~ 
Post-retirement benefit inc~~ are paid to members who retire after June 30, 2012. Members will 
be eligible to receive ~~® of living increases at the later of the member's third anniversary of 
retirement and the m~ following their SSNRA. When a municipality elects coverage, it may elect 
either COLA C (c~ing only current and future active members and excluding members already 
retired) or COLA 'B ( covering current retired members as well as current and future active members). 

a. The COLA will be suspended for any unit whose funding level is less than 80%; however, an interim 
COLA may be granted in four-year intervals while the COLA is suspended. The first interim COLA 
may begin January I, 2018. 

b. Effective July 1, 2015, the COLA is determined based on 50% of the plan's five-year average 
investment rate ofreturn less 5.5% limited to a range of0.0% to 4.0%, plus 50% of the lesser of3.0% 
or last year's CPI-U increase for a total maximum increase of 3.50%. Previously, it was the plan's five­
year average investment rate of return less 5.5% limited to a range of0.0% to 4.0%. 
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NOTE 6 -DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

General Information abont the Pension Plan (Continued) 

Other Benefit Provisions (Continued) 

c. The COLA will be limited to the first $25,000 of the member's annual pension benefit. For retirees 
and beneficiaries who retired on or before July 1, 2015, years in which a C,?S,A is payable based on 
the every fourth year provision described in (a) above will be limited to the ~$30,000. These limits 
will be indexed annually to increase in the same manner as COLAs, with ~1'nown values of $25,000 
for 2013, $25,000 for 2014, $25,168 for 2015, $25,855 for 2016, and i~~98 for 2017. 

"'«) 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms J-
At the June 30, 2021 valuation date, the following employe#ere covered by the benefit terms: ~ Retirees and Beneficiaries 0v 79 

Inactive, Nonretired Members ~,, 94 
Active Members ~' 160 
Total ~ 333 

'?'' 
::<... 

Contributions - The amount of empl~ and employer contributions have been established under 
Rhode Island General Law Chapter:!$~ I. General employees with less than 20 years of service as of 
June 30, 2012 are required to co~ute 1 % of their salaries. General employees with more than 20 
years of service as of June 30 ~2 are required to contribute 8.25%. The Chariho Regional School 
District contributes at a ra~~overed employee payroll as determined by an independent actuary on 
an annual basis. The G~al Assembly can amend the amount of these contribution requirements. 
The Chariho Region~/School District contributed $626,695 in the year ended June 30, 2022 which 
was 11.72% of an~covered payroll. 

<:) 

Net Pension Liability (Asset) - The total pension liability was determined by actuarial valuations 
performed as of June 30, 2020 and rolled forward to June 30, 2021, using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement. 
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions Used in the Valuations to determine the Net Pension Liability at the 
June 30, 2021 measurement date (June 30, 2020 valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2021) 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal - the Individual Entry Age Actuarial Cost methodology is used. 

Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll - Closed 
. 

Actuarial Assumptions 0' ,~" 
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% «"-v 

/~ 

Projected Salary Increases General Employees - 3.50% to 7.25% ~ 
V 

Inflation 2.5% ~ ,-0 
Mortality Mortality-variants of the PUB (10) ~s for Healthy and Disabled Retirees, projected with 

Scale Ultimate MP16. ~ 

Cost of Living Adjustments The known COLA for ce~1R.s units in calendar years 2019 and 2020 were 1.86% and 
1.56%, respectively, and t · as reflected in the June 30, 2019 valuation. All future COLAs were 
assumed to be 2.1 % num for all MERS units with the COLA provision 

The actuarial assumptions used in the Juu__~b, 2020 valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2021 and the 
calculation of the total pension liabilit~:hme 30, 2021 were consistent with the results of an actuarial 
experience study performed as of J# 30, 2019. 

The long-term expected rate #r't:rn best-estimate on pension plan investments was determined by 
the actuary using a buildiet,l:ilock method. The actuary started by calculating best-estimate future 
expected real rates of~~rn (expected returns net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
for each major asse~lass, based on a collective summary of capital market expectations from 39 
sources. The Ju~~' 2021 expected arithmetic returns over the long-term (20 years) by asset class 
are summarized in the following table: 
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NOTE 6 -DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

Asset C1ass 

Long-Term 
Target Asset 

Allocation 

Long-Tenn 
Expected Arithmetic 
Real Rate of Return 

GROWTH 
Global Equity: 

U.S. Equity 23.20% 
International Developed Equity 
Emerging Markets Equity 
Sub-Total 

I 1.80% ~ 
---,-"5"-'.0:,::.0:..::..'½ ..:::,,«; 

Private Growth: 
40.00% ~<;; 

~ 
Private Equity II.~ 
Non-Core Real Estate ~~ 
OPP Private Credit ~.50% 
Sub-Total c,Cis.00% 

INCOME ~ 
High Yield Infrastructure 0'0 1.00% 
REITS -{:,. 1.00% 
Equity Options \)Q 2.00% 

EMD (50/50 Blend) -~ "?" 2.00% 
Liquid Credit ..;:,- 2.80% 
Private Credit _-<::-, 3 .20% 
Sub-Total K)'- 12.00% 

STABILITY !(,,~ 
Crisis Protection Cla~ 

Treastny Dw-atio~~ 
Systematic Tren~ 

Sub-Total 0~ 
Inflation P){'~ction: 

Co~e ~al Estate 
Pr' · Infrastructure 
Na 1 Resources 
Sub-Total 

Volatility Protection: 
IG Corp Credit 
Securitized Credit 
Absolute Return 
Cash 
Sub-Total 

Total 

5.00% 
5.00% 

10.00% 

3.60% 
2.40% 
2.00% 
8.00% 

3.25% 
3.25% 
6.50% 
2.00% 

15.00% 

100.00% 

5.83% 
6.35% 
8.04% 

9.47% 
5.32% 
9.47% 

3.19% 
5.32% 
5.59% 
1.96% 
3.19% 
3.19% 

-0.32% 
3.39% 

5.32% 
5.81% 
0.30% 

1.14% 
1.14% 
3.39% 

-0.32% 
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NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

These return assumptions are then weighted by the target asset allocation percentage, factoring in 
correlation effects, to develop the overall long-term expected rate of return best-estimate on an 
arithmetic basis. 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability of the plans was 7.0 
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate ass~ed that contributions 
from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and th~1mtributions from the 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially de~med. Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was project~ be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Theref~ the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all perio~')if projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. O~ 

c; 
Changes in the Net Pensio~bility (Asset) 

(-., 0 Increase (Decrease) 
T~}ension Plan Fiduciary 

9 \>iiability Net Position 
Net Pension 

Liability 

.f 
Balances as ofJL111e 30, 2020 t, $ 25,952,223 $ 21,303,803 .:..$ __ 4

2
,..:..64.:c8c.c,4.c.:2:..:.0 

Changes for the year ~~<i) 
Service cost 0 
Interest on the total pension lia~ 
Diflerence between expec~~nd actual 

experience «.o 
Changes in assumpt~ 
Employer contri9-..~ns 
Employee contril'futions 
Pension plan net investment income 
Benefit payments 
Pension plan administrative expense 
Other changes 

Net changes 

Balances as ofJL111e 30, 2021 

448,352 
1,786,189 

(286,652) 

(1,318,824) 

629,065 

612,732 
149,681 

5,715,991 
(1,318,824) 

(21,779) 
(13,686) 

5,124,115 

448,352 
1,786,189 

(286,652) 

(612,732) 
(149,681) 

(5,715,991) 

21,779 
13,686 

(4,495,050) 

$ 26,581,288 $ 26,427,918 ,;;$_~1;;;5,;;.3,;;;,37;,;;0 
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NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Disconnt Rate. The following presents 
the net pension liability (asset) of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.0 percent, as 
well as whatthe employers' net pension liability ( asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is I-percentage-point lower or I-percentage-point higher than the current rate. 

1.00% Decrease 
6.0% 

$2,448,100 

Current Discount Rate 
7.0% 

$153,370 

1.00% Increase 
8.0"/4 

$ 2, ~03 
X,-

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information ab?(ft<{/;e pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued ERSRI financial ~-

0 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resou~Y and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 0'V 

~ 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 the employer reoo~ized pension income of $226,121. The employer 
reported deferred outflows and inflows of re~t-;~elated to pensions from the following sources: 

"?"' -t-, Deferred Deferred 
~0 

00 
~'cf 

Contributions subsequent to ~~asurement date 
Di:l:rerence between expe~ and actual experience 
Changes in assumptio~"­

Net di:l:rerence be~~ projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Outflows of 
Resources 

626,695 
28,498 

112,701 

435,837 

$ 

Inflows of 
Resources 

327,837 
155,329 

3,435,196 

1,203,731 $ 3,918,362 
=:a-~~= 

$626,695 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Chariho 
Regional School District's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent period. 
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NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

(b) Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) (Continued) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30, 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

2027 

Total ~<0 

~ (773,898) 
0~ (821,648) 

g:;0 (808,604) 

Net Defer~ 
Outflows ~ws) 

~~~ces 

~ 0'0 (912,499) 

0<:>'' (24,677) 
I?' 

$ (3,341,326) 

t-
Summary of Pension Expense, De~d Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to All Pensions 
of the District (j 

'S"'?' 
~'?' 

o«:-
y_,"-«. 

Defurre~ows 
Deferred mflows 
Net pension liability 
Pension (income) expense 

MERS 
General 

Plan 
$1,203,731 

3,918,362 

153,370 

(226,121) 

ERS 
Teachers 

Plan 
$7,989,965 $ 

12,785,071 

33,870,264 

1,882,264 

Total 
9,193,696 

16,703,433 

34,023,634 

1,656,143 
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NOTE 7 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN 

Defined Contribution Plan Description 

Employees participating in the defined benefit plan with less than 20 years of service as of June 30, 
2012 as described above, also participate in a defined contribution plan authorized by General Law 
Chapter 36-10.3 The defined contribution plan is established under IRS section 40l(a) and is 
administered by TIAA-CREF. Employees may choose among various investment options available 
to plan participants. Employees contribute 5% of their annual covered salary and employers contribute 
between 1% and 1.5% of annual covered salary depending on the employee's total years of service as 
of July 1, 2012. Employee contributions are immediately vested while enmti\yer contributions and 
any investment earnings thereon are vested after three years of contribiµ~ service. Benefit terms 
and contributions required under the plan by both the employee and e~16yer are established by the 
General Laws, which are subject to amendment by the General A~y. 

Amounts in the defined contribution plan are available to p~pants in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Service guidelines for such plans. c,O 

g;f 
The Chariho Regional School District recognized pe9:sli>')l expense of $165,450 for certified staff and 
$39,069 for municipal staff for the fiscal year ende~une 30, 2022. 

v 
The System issues a publicly available finan~report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for plans ad~~tered by the system. The report may be obtained at 
http://www.ersri.org. {<,,~ 

~ 
NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONT~~NCIES 

~ 
Contracts ~ ~ 

0 
The School District h~'iiblicly bid and contracted with a private contractor to have in-district bussing 
services provided ,tf!f students through the last day of school June 2024. The School Committee 
awarded the priv~contractor a three-year contract with two one-year extension options by mutual 
consent through the last day of school in June 2026. Due to extremely high costs incurred by the 
District in FY 19 while utilizing statewide transportation (as required by legislation), the District 
requested a variance from the RI Department of Education to transport most of the District's out-of. 
district special education students using a private contractor. This variance is still in effect for FY21. 
The District also requested FY22 variances related to grade five bus monitors and kindergarten stops; 
both of which were approved. A request for variance for out-of-district private school transportation 
was denied by the RI Department of Education during the Chariho transportation bid process in Spring 
2021 and on September 20, 2021. The projected annual payment for Ocean State Transit for FY23 is 
estimated at approximately $5 million, consistent with actual FY22 expenditures due to the full 
reinstatement of normal post-Covid operations. 
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NOTE 8- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

The State of Rhode Island publicly bid and awarded a one-year contract to Chartwells for school 
nutrition services with four one-year extension options by mutual consent. On May 24, 2022 the 
School Committee approved the District's participation in year two (FY23) of the contract with the 
option to renew years three (FY24) through five (FY26). 

Grants 

The District has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to audit by the 
grantors or their representatives. Such audits could lead to requests for rei~sement to the grantor 
agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. The D~'ilt officials believe such 
disallowances, if any, would be immaterial. x, ~ 

L .. . ~"-(<) 
itigatton ~ '-

There are various lawsuits pending against the District. ~f ough the outcome of most of these 
lawsuits is not presently determinable, any probable clai~ as determined by the District officials and 
counsel, have been appropriately provided for. :-<._ 0 

~" 
NOTE 9 -RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES ,i5 

~Q 
The COVID-19 outbreak in the United S/q_t~ has caused business disruption through mandated and 
voluntary closings of businesses acros~ country for non-essential services. While the disruption is 
currently expected to be tempor_'.'~~ere is considerable uncertainty about the duration of the 
pandei_nic. !he exten_t to which C~ID-19 may impact the District's financial condition or results of 
operat10ns 1s uncertain. ~~ 

NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-E~YMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

" Plan Description ~{s 
<:) 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 6 and 7, the District administers a single­
employer, defined benefit Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan in accordance with the 
District teachers' contract, effective September I, 2002. Under the provisions of the contract, any 
teacher who retires within the first three years of their eligibility to collect retirement benefits from 
the State's Teacher Retirement System will be entitled to the following District contributions toward 
the teacher's cost of health insurance: $2,000 maximum per year for family plan coverage, and $850 
maximum per year for individual coverage. The District's obligation to these retirees shall continue 
until the retiree reaches age 65. The retiree may not receive benefits under the plan if covered by a 
spouse's family plan, but may opt to participate once coverage under a spouse's plan ceases. The plan 
may only be amended by the School Committee, subject to the terms of the teacher contract. Effective 
July I, 2012, the School Committee elected to amend the stipend benefit subsidy. 
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NOTE 10- OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Plan Description (Continued) 

The stipend subsidy for District teachers has been discontinued and current active teachers will no 
longer be eligible to elect the benefit with subsidy within the first three years of eligibility. 
Administrators are still eligible for the stipend benefit and monthly stipend amounts as defined above. 
Existing retirees currently receiving the stipend benefit will continue to receive this benefit until they 
reach age 65. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report since there are no assets legally 
segregated for the sole purpose of paying benefits under the plan. 

~~ 
Benefits Provided ~°" 

~ 
Eligibility: Certified teachers and support staff are eligible for retjz~«nealth benefits until Medicare 
eligibility once they meet the retirement eligibility requirement~~er Rhode Island State Employees 
Retirement System (RI ERS) or Rhode Island Municipal Eml)~ees Retirement System (RI MERS). 

c; 
RI ERS - Employees with less than five years of cont~ting service credit on June 30, 2012 may 
retire at the Social Security normal retirement ag~?(?'Aiigher than 67). For employees with at least 
five years of contributing service credit on Jun 0, 2012, minimum retirement age is 62 with 
"proportional downward adjustment" toward an &ti lier retirement date based on years of service prior 
to July I, 2012, but not earlier than 59. Empl~es with at least 10 years of contributing service credit 
on June 30, 2012 and members eligible ~~ire at September 30, 2009 may retire with 10 years of 
service at age 60 or after 28 years of s ce at any age, if they continue to work and contribute until 
that date. If they are within five yea reaching the Rhode Island Retirement Security Act (RIRSA) 
retirement eligibility date and h~- t least 20 years of service, they may retire at any time. Effective 
on July 1, 2015, employees ;J!;. also eligible to retire upon attainment of age 65 with 30 years of 
service, age 64 with 31 ye~ of service, age 63 with 32 years of service, or age 62 with at least 33 
years of service. These ~Q additional eligibility requirements, which means that if employees are 
eligible to retire unde~The current eligibility requirements, they may do so. 

ii' 
RI MERS - Emp16yees eligible to retire as of July 1, 2012 are not impacted by the new eligibility 
requirements described below. Prior to July 1, 2012, members were eligible for retirement on or after 
age 58 if they had credit for 10 or more years of service, or at any age if they had credit for at least 30 
years of service. For employees who are not eligible to retire as of July 1, 2012: 

a) Members with less than five years of contributing service credit on June 30, 2012 may retire at 
their Social Security normal retirement age. 

b) Members with at least five years of contributing service credit on June 30, 2012 may retire at an 
individually determined age, which is the result of interpolating the member's prior Retirement 
Date and the retirement age applicable to members hired after June 30, 2012. 

c) Members with at least ten years of contributing service credit on June 30, 2012 may retire at their 
prior Retirement Date if they continue to work and contribute until that date. 
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NOTE 10- OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Benefits Provided (Continued) 

All members who are within five years of reaching their retirement eligibility date may retire at any 
time if they have at least 20 years of service. Effective on July 1, 2015, employees are also eligible to 
retire upon attainment of age 65 with 30 years of service, age 64 with 31 years of service, age 63 with 
32 years of service, or age 62 with at least 33 years of service. These are additional eligibility 
requirements, which means that if employees are eligible to retire under the current eligibility 
requirements, they may do so. 

{v~ 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms (<)" 

~ 
As of June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the ~fit terms: 

~ 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit pa~ 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit pa~s 
Active employees ,;:;qj 
Total ~ 0 

,::f:> 

9 

2 

458 

469 

Total OPEB Liability 'S;"Q ~ 

The District's total OPEB liability of$6J~t7 was measured as of June 30, 2022, and was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of June 3~22. 

~ 
Actuarial Assumptions 'S;""r-0 

The total OPEB liability in~~kne 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, a~ed to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

"-Actuarial Val~n Date: June 30, 2022 with no adjustment to get to the June 30, 2022 
Q measurement date. Liabilities as of July 1, 2021 are based on an 

actuarial valuation date of July 1, 2020 projected to July 1, 2021 on 
a "no loss/no gain" basis. 

Discount Rate: 

Payroll Growth: 

Inflation Rate: 

Cost Method: 

4.09% as of June 30, 2022 and 2.19% as of July 1, 2021 for 
accounting disclosure purposes. 

3.00% (2.50% general inflation and 0.50% real wage inflation). 

2.50% per year. 

Entry Age Normal Level% Salary. 
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NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

Health Care Trend Rates: 7.5% for 2023, decreasing by 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 
4.0% for 2029 and later years. 

Spouse Coverage: 

Mortality: 

Spousal coverage for current retirees is based on actual data. 70% of 
employees are assumed to be married at retirement. Husbands are 
assumed to be three years older than wives. 

~ 
MERS - SOA Pub-2020 General Hea~nt Weighted Mortality 
Table fully generational using Scale ~021. RI ERS - SOA Pub-
2010 Teachers Headcount W~ted Mortality Table fully 
generational using Scale MP-2~. Surviving Spouses - SOA Pub 
2010 Contingent Survivor R,~count Weighted Mortality Table 
fully generational using Se,~MP-2021. 

~ 
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 0..;j 

~ 
Changes in the total OPEB liability for the year ~d June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 

~ 
:<.. ,t Total OPEB 

{<,,~ Liability 
~~ 

~0 
~,t 

Service cost 0<1;-

Balance at June 30, 2021 
Changes fur the year: 

Interest "'.. «, 
Changes ~~sumptions 
Differen@s between expected and actual experience 

Benefit payments 

Net changes 

Balance at June 30, 2022 

$ 

$ 

845,967 

37,331 
18,864 

(66,123) 
(161,965) 
(44,057) 

(215,950) 

630,017 

Changes in assumptions reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.19% for fiscal year ended June 
30, 2021 to 4.09% as of June 30, 2022. 
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NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower 
(1.19%) or I-percentage-point higher (3.19%) than the current discount rate: 

Current 
!%Decrease Discount Rate I% Increase 

$ 630,017 $(<_,:r 591,805 
~ 

(3.09%) 
Total OPEB liability $ 669,381 

(4.09%) ~9%) 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to Changes in the Health#ost Trend Rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Dist~~s well as what the District's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using health~ cost trend rates that are 1-percentage­
point lower (6.5% decreasing to 3.5%) or 1-percentage#nt higher (8.5% decreasing to 5.5%) than 
the current healthcare cost trend rates: ~ Cj 

s:;'-
fcurrent Health 

I% Decrease 'S'Q Care Trend Rates I% Increase 
(6.5% Deer~~! (7.5% Decreasing (8.5% Decreasing 

to 3½,ri/i to 4.5%) to 5.5%) 
Total OPEB liability $ 0 73,876 $ 630,017 $ 694,213 

'S''Z' 
OPEB Expense and Deferr~utflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
toOPEB 0~ 

~«. 
For the year ende~une 30, 2022, the District recognized OPEB income of $17,350 in the 
Government-wid$atement of Activities. At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience $ $ 154,593 
Changes in assumptions 33,710 52,898 

Total $ 33,710 $ 207,491 
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NOTE 10- OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Ontflows ofResonrces and Deferred Inflows ofResonrces Related 
to OPEB (Continned) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows/(intlows) of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in 
OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2026 

$ 

$ 

(41,813) ~ 

(39,131) ~«; 
(47,221) Q;-<i; 

(45,6~h<:,<:, 
(173,7~ 

0~ 
NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES V«f(J 

0 
For its employer health insurance coverage, the Dis~ has chosen to participate in the Health Benefits 
Project provided by the WB Community He~, an independent, non-profit organization (the 
Collaborative). The District is also self:i_~red for dental insurance coverage through the 
Collaborative. Deposits made to the Coll*~Afive are treated as expenditures when it is probable that 
a claim has been incurred, and include.~mated amounts for claims that have been incurred but not 
reported (IBNR). Claim liabilities a~l~ulated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim and 
health care trends, and other econ~fu'ic and social factors. 

~ 
An analysis of claims activ~presented below: 

0 
~~ «_ Current Year 

if Net Position Claims and 
<:) 

Balance at 
Beginning of Year 

Expenses, 
Including IBNR 

Actual Plan 
Deposits 

Net Position 

Balance at 
Year End 

June 30, 2022 

June 30, 2021 

$ 

$ 

3,264,500 $ 

2,788,487 $ 

5,564,915 $ 6,331,246 $ 4,030,831 

6,437,647 $ 6,913,660 $ 3,264,500 

The Plan is covered by excess loss insurance coverage to cover annual per person claims in excess of 
$175,000. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 11- RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

Other types of insurance coverage purchased through private insurers are as follows: public officials 
and employee liability, flood and earthquake insurance, boiler and machinery coverage, general 
liability, property and casualty, garage liability, oceans and marine liability and fiduciary coverage. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year ended June 30, 2022 
as compared to the previous year. Claims incurred on these other types of insurance did not exceed 
insurance coverage during the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020. 

NOTE 12- POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATION ~ 

The District is currently involved in the operation and maintenance ofth~~undwater Remediation 
System at the Middle School and continued implementation of a i:a,ode Island Department of 
Environmental Management (RID EM) approved Full-Scale Soil ~hing Program. The District 
initially retained non-professional and professional consulting st~es to achieve the initial design of 
the recovery system. The initial design of the recovery systell)...,~luded the use of total fluids recovery 
technology which involved pumping a combination of gro@tdwater and free product and running it 
through an oil/water separator. From its original install~ in 1999 through 2005, it is estimated that 
approximately 4,000 gallons of free product were rec~ed. Consulting services are being utilized to 
achieve compliance with the applicable RID EM r®))lations with regard to the remediation of No. 2 
fuel from a former leaking underground storage t~ Using RIDEM's target cleanup goal, the District 
anticipates ongoing operation of the system ~,qubstantially the same configuration that exists today 
for one to three more years. The District ~l'rmonitor the system operation and product recovery rates 
over the next year to assess when t ~ree product thickness will meet the target goal. When 
appropriate, the District will shut d the system and observe the free product thickness at several 
locations. The consultant and m ement believe the cleanup can be terminated within three years 
at a total remaining estimatecJ,__~ st ranging from $47,000 to $64,000. The District has recorded the 
estimated remaining liabili~'Sr $64,000 in the Government-wide statement of net position as of June 
3o, 2022. «o 

~,<,_ 
NOTE 13- RIGHT OF ~'i'AsSETS-GASB 87 IMPLEMENTATION 

<) 

As described in Note I, lease changes were incorporated into the District's fiscal year 2022 financial 
statements and did not have an effect on opening net position. The District has entered into various 
leases as a lessee for office equipment with maturity dates through fiscal year 2025. 
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NOTE 13-RIGHT OF USE ASSETS-GASB 87 IMPLEMENTATION (CONTINUED) 

Annual requirements to amortize the lease liability and related interest are as follows: 

2023 

2024 

2025 

Total 

$ 

$ 

50,218 

48,599 

23,172 

121,989 

~ 
~~ 

Q;-«; 
NOTE 14 - FUND BALANCES :<,_,<._«_,«_, 

(a) Fund Balances ~,$:' 
0 

As stated in Note I, Fund Balance may be classified ~_g;e of five categories: Non-Spendable, 
Restricted, Committed, Assigned, or Unassigned. S~1'lote I for definitions of these five Fund 
Balance categories. The detail of the composition ~he Non-Spendable, Restricted, and Committed 
Fund Balance at June 30, 2022 is as follows: ~ 

~ 
Non-Spendable: -,t 

Deposit held for health and dental be~ $ 4,030,831 

Prepaid expenses 
0
«,,~ 161,615 

Total Non-Spendable 'S""?' $ 4,192,446 

~"?' 
The deposits held for heq.I,©~nd dental benefits are maintained by WB Community Health and are not 
readily available as c¥,'ll 1o the District. The deposits may be used to fund future self-insured health 
and dental claims s}L~ld the monthly premiums not be sufficient to cover the actual claims incurred. 
As a result, thesa)'aeposits net of the estimated IBNR claims payable are considered to be non­
spendable fund balance as of June 30, 2022. 
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NOTE 14- FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

(a) Fund Balances (Continued) 

Restricted: 
Bond sinking fund requirements 
Restricted for future debt service - Member Town Fund 
Title I 
Race to the Top Early Learning Challenge 
RI Department ofHuman Services Rising Stars 
Student Activities 

$ 6,062,589 
136,574 

270 
127 

~1 
~63 

Categorical x, </f(,o:3 I 4 
RI Foundation ,<,_«J 8,539 
RI Foundation SPARK Grant J' 676 
RI Foundation Professional Development 0~ 40 
RI State Arts Council g/0 841 
Community 2000 Foundation 0.;j 9,768 
AMGEN Grant ~~ 244 
GenYouthFoundation ,f3 884 
Westerly Credit Union ~() 21 
Clark Foundation :<-.. '?' 163 
Champlin Foundation ~«,,~ 24,230 
Rotary Club c:J<) 6,680 

NAESP Crayola ~~ 1,548 
Providence Engineering So~~Robotics 500 
NationalFFAFoundati~ 233 
Lovett Foundation y_"'- 198 
Donations - Fiel~~s 1,591 
Donations - Private 41,754 
Family Educational Programs 1,374 
School Building Authority Capital 22,186 
American Council International Travel 2,405 
Various Educational Program 108 

RYSE Capital Project 37,973 

Total Restricted Fund Balance $ 7,057,234 
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NOTE 14- FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

(a) Fund Balances (Continued) 

Committed: 
Re-appropriate to fiscal 2022-2023 operating budget 
COVID-19 related expenses 
Potential contingencies 
Capital projects awarded but not completed­

Member Town Contribution Fund 
Capital projects awarded but not completed -

Capital Projects Housing Aid Fund 

Total Committed Fund Balance 

$ 2,089,668 
150,000 
250,000 

1,522~1 

.,:,.~ 
~6,354 

,~<v-~5)98,833 

~ 
At June 30, 2022, the District's unassigned fund balance ~~1,721,108 (all related to its general 
fund), which falls within the District's target, per its fun-¥alance policy, of2% to 4% of the general 
fund's actual expenditures from the previous year. :\ Cj 

~' (b) Fund Deficits ,j;> 
~ 

The following individual funds incurred C;~~ing deficits for the year ended June 30, 2022: 
Governmental Funds: {<,~ 

Special Revenue Funds: ~~ 
RI Foundation 'f?'-0 
Community 2000 Found~~ 
Clark Foundation O'<:-
Categorical Fundi~ 
Donations Fiels!~ips 
Developmen~nations 
School Building Authority Capital 

Total Operating Deficits - Governmental Funds 

Proprietary Funds: 
Non-Major Proprietary Funds: 

Night School Remedial 
Adult Education Program 
Athletics Program 

Total Operating Deficits - Proprietary Funds 

There were no funds with cumulative deficits as of June 30, 2022. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,239 
7,626 
4,648 
8,151 
3,281 
5,000 

33,860 

64,805 

4,911 
634 

1,084 

6,629 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Payments on all long-term debt and other long-term liabilities that pertain to the District's governmental activities are made by the general fund or debt 
service funds. Long-term liabilities consist of the long-term liabilities that are not recorded as fund liab@ies Amounts are as follows: 

Balance ✓~,$ Balance 

Bonds Payable: 

$4.8M QSCB Construction Revenue Bond 
$3.8M QSCB Constmction Revenue Bond 
$4.975M RIHEBC Revenue Bond 
$6.345M RIHEBC Refimding Revenue Bond 

Bonds Pnyable Tutnl 

Bond Premiulll'l: 

Com(lensnted Absences: 

Note Payable Obligation: 

Note Payable Total 

Total Long-Tenn Debt 

Date of Ammmt Interest Mahnity Outstandmg <?::_V Outstandmg Due Withni 
Issue Issued Rate Date June 30, 2021 ditions Retirements Jtnte 30, 2022 One Year 

6/15/2010 $ 4,812,000 0.46% 5/15/2027 $ 4,812,~ $ $ $ 4,812,000 $ 
12/2/2010 $ 3,757,000 0.726% 5/15/2027 

3~ 
3,757,000 

11/16/2017 $ 4,975,000 2.50%-5% 5/15/2027 3 ,000 535,000 3,040,000 560,000 
ll/16/2017 $ 6,345,000 3%-5% 5/15/2031 Mq(,345,ooo 510,000 5,835,000 535,000 

e's; Cj 8,489,000 1,045,000 17,444,000 1,095,000 

11/16/2017 $ 
,::i' 

614,219 NIA 5/15/2t 368,531 61,422 307,109 
11/16/2017 $ 1,036,649 NIA 5/~ 1 740,465 74,046 666,419 

"~ 1,108,996 135,468 973,528 

{<_,"<:' 2,644,131 2,486,234 2,562,242 2,568,123 642,031 
{<,,~ 

8/5/2018 $ s99,o~{J.99% 8/5/2021 153,217 153,217 
10/1/2018 $ $, 7.18% 10/1/2021 44,186 44,186 
8/1/2019 $ , 2 7.09% 8/1/2022 46,021 22,197 23,824 23,824 
8/5/2019 $ ~ 7,999 3.59% 8/5/2022 153,904 75,595 78,309 78,309 
11512020 A 22s,046 2.s4% 7/5/2023 168,618 54,639 113,979 56,191 
8/1/2020,...'<I 126,994 6.75% 8/1/2023 91,972 28,618 63,354 30,611 

0'<:' 657,918 378,452 279,466 188,935 

$ 22,900,045 $ 2,486,234 $ 4,121,162 $21,265,117 $1,925,966 
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NOTE 15 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Total interest expense paid on long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2022 was approximately 
$1,000,000. The District has been approved for housing aid reimbursement on the principal and interest, 
on all construction revenue bonds issued, throughout the life of the bonds. 

The proceeds from the bonds were used to finance the acquisition, construction, furnishing and equipping 
of schools and school facilities, including but not limited to various school renovation projects, and to pay 
the cost of issuance. The $4,812,000 bond and $3,757,000 bond require sinking fund deposits to be held 
on deposit by the trustee and will be paid to the bondholders in full in May 2027 for both bonds. As of 
June 30, 2022 the balance held in the bond sinking fund totaled $6,076,197. ~ 

~«; 
Debt Maturity «;-<;; 

The Sinking Fund principal deposits and annual interest pay1~<vrequired on the $4,812,000 and 
$3,757,000 Revenue Bonds are as follows: ~.;$:-

cP Deposits to 
..:::,«f Sinking Fund 

~ 0 as of 
~ 

Year Ended June 30, · cipal Interest June 30, 2022 

2012 # 300,750 $ 22,134 $ 300,750 
2013 t- 300,750 22,134 300,750 
2014 ~0 300,750 22,134 300,750 
2015 0~ 300,750 22,134 300,750 
2016 'S;"'?' 300,750 22,134 300,750 
2017 ~'?' 300,750 22,134 300,750 o«:-2018 "'-«. 300,750 22,134 300,750 
2019 

~ 
300,750 22,134 300,750 

2020 300,750 22,134 300,750 <) 
2021 300,750 22,134 300,750 

2022 300,750 22,134 300,750 

2023 300,750 22,134 

2024 300,750 22,134 

2025 300,750 22,134 

2026 300,750 22,134 

2027 300,750 22,134 

Total $ 4,812,000 $ 354,144 $ 3,308,250 
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NOTE 15- LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Debt Maturity (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest 

234,813 $ 27~5 
234,813 i~75 
234,813 ~~7,275 
234,813 ~«.,«- 27,275 
234,813 J- 27,275 
234,81;\:)'~ 27,275 

234..6fj 27,275 

~~13 27,275 
,§)'234,812 27,275 

~ 'i"' 234,812 27,275 
~ 234,812 27,275 

{<,~ 234,812 27,275 
~~ 234,812 27,275 

":?-0 234,812 27,275 

$ 2012 
2013 

2014 
2015 
2016 

2017 
2018 

2019 
2020 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

2025 
2026 
2027 

~~ 234,812 27,275 
~ 234,812 27,275 

«.o 
~~ 

Q~'i"' 
Total $ 3,757,000 $ 436,400 

Deposits to 
Sinking Fund 

as of 
June 30, 2022 

$ 

$ 

234,813 
234,813 
234,813 
234,813 
234,813 
234,813 

234,813 
234,813 

234,813 
234,813 
234,813 

2,582,943 
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NOTE 15- LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Debt Maturity (Continued) 

The future maturities of bond and notes outstanding for years subsequent to June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ended June 30, 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 •• 
2028-2031 

Total 

Principal 

$ 1,283,935 $ 
1,235,~1 

'.'~i~o 
~~,000 

Interest 

463,188 
406,406 
352,234 
306,459 
244,459 
317,650 

~(ol,874,000 
~~ 2,900,000 

~· 17,723,466 $ 2,090,396 

cP 
** The year ending June 30, 2027 includes the full~o/ment of the QSCB Revenue Bonds totaling 
$8,569,000. The annual principal payments on thes~,QSCB Revenue Bonds have been placed in a Sinking 
Fund commencing with the 2012 payments. T~amounts expected to be placed in the Sinking Fund 
through the year ending June 30, 2026 are $~~~,438. Therefore the principal debt service payment on 
these QSCB Revenue Bonds required frot~perations for 2027 will be $535,563 with the remaining 
amount paid from the Sinking Fund de~s. 

~ 
NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 00 

'S''?' 
Subsequent events have be~~valuated through January XX, 2023, which is the date the financial 
statements were availableo~ 

A._« 

~ <:) 
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Revenues 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
(UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Originally 
Adopted 
Budget 

Final 
Approved 

Budget 

Actual 
(Budgetary 

Basis) 

Contributions from participating Towns 
Intergovernmental revenue 

$ 53,886,976 $ 53,886,976 $ 53,886,976 
2,432,773 2,432,773 1,770,827 

Tuition 
Investment income 

Miscellaneous 

3,537,609 
34,000 

3,537,609 -' 3,390,781 

68,168 
34,000 ~~ 42 I 04 
71,48 ~" 67,925 

Total Revenues 59,959,526 59,962 ~-~ ~ Employee compensation 34,425,875 _ ~,285,162 
Employee benefits 14,778,078 Q~-14,633,990 
Purchased professional and technical services 1,799,4~() 1,890,390 
Purchased property services 1,30~~ 1,303,635 
Other purchased services :~0;865 7,430,274 
Supplies '0<;JJ'44,048 1,694,781 
Property '?' 198,686 421,230 
Debt service and other ~<:) 110,616 112,037 

Total Expenditures ~ '?' 61,627,282 61,771,499 

~ 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expendit~«) 

0 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) ~~ 

Transfer to capital project fund ~"f 
Use of accumulated fund balance - prior year~ignation 

Total Other Financing Sources «Q 
~-\ 

Excess of Revenues and Other Fi~lting Sources 

Over Expenditures and Other<iinancing Uses 

(1,667,756) 

1,667,756 

1,667,756 

$ $ 

(I ,808,659) 

(1,424,712) 
3,233,371 

1,808,659 

59,158,613 

34,407,019 
12,885,227 
1,599,233 
1,074,317 
7,365,649 
1,537,367 

273,042 
86,873 

59,228,727 

(70,114) 

(1,424,712) 
3,233,371 

1,808,659 

$ 1,738,545 

The adjustments necessary to reconcile actual revenues and expenditures reported on a budgetary basis to actual 
revenues and expenditures reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles are as follows: 

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budgetary Basis 

On-behalf pension contribution by State of Rhode Island 
Non-public transportation offset 

Use of accumulated fund balance 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures- GAAP Basis (B-2) 

Revenues and 
Other Financing 

Sources 

$ 62,391,984 
3,115,088 

253,478 
(3,233,371) 

$ 62,527,179 

Expenditures 
and Other 

Financing Uses Net 

$ 60,653,439 $ 1,738,545 
3,115,088 

253,478 
(3,233,371) 

$ 64,022,005 $ (1,494,826) 

$ 

$ 

D-1 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(661,946) 
(146,828) 

8,104 
(3,557) 

(804,227) 

(121,857) 
1,748,763 

291,157 
229,318 

64,625 
157,414 
148,188 
25,164 

2,542,772 

1,738,545 

1,738,545 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 

4 SCHEDULE OF CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE 
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 

2022 2021 2020 

~ 
2019 (i;,.f(; 2018 

«,~ Employer's proportion of (he net pension Linbil~y 

Employer's proportionate share of die net pension liability 

State's proportionate share of die net pension Jiibilijy associated with the 
schooldfitrict 

Total 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of die net pension Liability 

ns n pcrcenlagc of~s covered employee payroll 

PlaH fiducia,y net position as n percentage ofllle totalpensiou LiabiliLy 

Nole: 

1.44% 

33,870,264 

25,117,837 

58,988,101 

30,072,255 

113% 

66.50% 

1.44% 1.42% 

$ 45,389,783 ~41i14,052 

34,00l,64t_i0~ 34,024,806 

$ 79,39~<.iii $ 79,638,858 

0 

45,862,835 

34,077,210 

79,940,045 

28,808,421 27,957,019 &502,387 

~ ,efi> 159% 

'?' 
163% 

54,60% 54.30% 

Sohed1,le Is In/ended to show Informal/on for 10 yeal's 

~""'"" {<,,~0 
adJJ/lonol years will be displayed as,fJhecon,e avcri/a/Jle. 

~ 
~~ 

v.o 
y_"-

'v~ 

1.45% 

45,767,309 

34,589,089 

80,356,398 

27,472,477 

167% 

54.00% 

2017 

1.57% 

46,970,949 

32,168,203 

79,139,152 

27,566,533 

!70% 

54.06% 

D-2 

2016 2015 

1.67% 1.53% 

46,097,184 37,261,942 

31,492,149 25,552,230 

77,589,333 62,814,172 

26,749,403 25,718,673 

172% 145% 

57.55% 61.41}% 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 

SCHEDULE OF CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 

2019 /~;,_-='--
.:,.'I✓ 

2022 2021 2020 2018 

$ 3,7~ 

~ 
4,024,537 R'-<s~60,219 

"-' --.i-0~~'-' --
5] 

$ 2~87 

Actuarially dct,.mnined contribution 4,360,477 

Contributions in relation to Hie actuarially <futennined ccmlribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered-employee payroU 

4,360,477 

4,177,221 

4,177,221 

30,072,255 28,808,421 

$ 4,024,537 

27,957,019 

0 
14.50% ~~ 14.12% 

0 
Cootnbutions as a percentage ofoovered- employee payroll 14.50% 13.45% - ~ Schedule Is Intended lo show Informal/on/or 10 years - additional years will be dispkryed as /hey beco1ne a~e. 

"~ {<,-~ 
{(,,~ 

~ 
~ 

g_..~ 
,p 

<,."-
<::)«:-~ 

3,637,356 

3,637,356 

.. 

27,472,477 

13,24% 

$ 

D-3 

2017 2016 2015 

3,633,269 3,672,693 $ 3,448,874 

3,633,269 3,672,693 3,448,874 

.. $ 

27,566,533 26,749,403 25,718,673 

13.18% 13.73% 13.41% 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

A, Total pension liability 

I. Service cost 
2. Interest on the total pension bahility 
3. Changes of benefit terms 
4. Difference betwee11 expected and actual experience 

5. Changes of assumptioos 
6. Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions 
7. Net change in total pension liability 

8. Total pcmsion linbility- beginning 

9. Total pension liability- ending (a) 
B, Plan fiduciary 11et position 

I. Contributions- employer 
2. Contributioos - employee 
3. Net investment income 
4. Benofit payments, including refunds of ernployeo contributions 
5. Pension plan administrative expense 
6, Other 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 

Year Ended 
June 30, 2022 

Year Ended 
June 30, 2021 

YearEnded YearEnded ✓*arEnded 
June JO 2020 June30,20\9J.'-"'une30,2018 

$ 448,352 

1,786,189 

(286,652) 

(1,318,824) 

629,065 

25,952,223 

481,337 
1,734,121 

45,848 
(249,889) 

(1,183,374) 

828,043 
25,124,180 

s so1,604 s .5t/Jn«"i $ 461,24s 

1,664,8~~ 1:--~.6~~ 1,561,175 

(47,286~ (253,612) (33,369) 

_o.~" 1,108,291 
(1,06:e:n) (990,074) (977,355) 

~,693 864,773 2,125,987 
, 61,487 23,1%,714 21,070,727 

$ 26,581,288 $ 25,952,223 '-~==~ 
'0\/ 

$ 24,061,487 $ 23,196,714 

612,732 $ i·~ $ 594,701 
149,681 ,074 164,406 

5,715,991 0,. 77,757 1,307,009 
(1,318,824)~ (1,183,374) (1,062,507) 

(21,77 (21,429) (20,431) 

$ 573,539 607,582 
166,419 175,612 

1,497,381 1,987,979 
(990,074) (977,355) 
(19,934) (18,782) 

(I 33,465 (68,670) 63,827 (8,429) 

7. Net ehange in plan fiduciaiy net position , 115 378,329 

20,925,474 

$ 21,303,803 

$ 4,648,420 
82.09% 

5,623,102 
82.67% 

914,508 

20,010,966 

$ 20,925,474 

$ 4,198,706 
83.29% 

1,291,158 1,766,607 

R Plan fiduciary net position - beginniog 3,803 

9. Plan fiduciary net position - ending(b) ~ 6,427,918 
C. Netpe11sion liability• emliug (a)• {b) ()~$ 153,370 
D, Plan lidueiary net positien as a ()errnnlage oftlie total pe11sio11 liabiq_ty 99.42% 
E, Covered employee payroll ~". $ 5,461,043 
F. Net pensio11 liability as a percentage or covered 1myroll <:)~"(, 2.81% 

5,652,607 
74.28% 

18,719,808 

$ 20,010,966 

$ 4,050,521 
83.17% 

5,520,120 
73.38% 

16,953,201 

$ 18,719,808 

$ 4,476,906 
80,70% 

5,503,470 
81.35% 

Year Ended YeorEnOOd 
Jun11 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

$ 468,099 467,912 
1,515,095 1,413,219 

283,863 
(371,047) 145,416 

(1,017,261) (887,070) 

594,886 1,423,340 
20,475,841 19,052,501 

$21,070,727 $ 20,475,841 

$ 578,340 $ 595,128 
179,233 107,812 

(5,884) 401,793 
(1,017,261) (887,070) 

(15,830) (16,117) 
89,696 3 

(191,706) 201,549 
17,144,907 16,943,358 

$ 16,953,201 $ 17,144,907 

$ 4,117,526 ' 3,330,934 
80.46% 83.73% 

S,374,273 5,390,690 
76.62% 61.79% 

D-4 

Year Ended 
June 30, 2015 

' 505,798 

1,340,630 

15,429 
(863,058) 

998,799 
18,053,702 

$ 19,052,501 

$ 555,047 
108,246 

2,256,666 

(863,058) 
(14,131) 

(5,509) 

2,037,261 

14,906,097 

$ 16,943,358 

$ 2,IOs>,143 
88.93% 

5,415,397 
38,95% 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 

SCHEDULE OF CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

Actuarially determined contribl.ltion 

Contriblltions in relatioo to the actuarially determined contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered-employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 

Fiscal2022 Fisca!2021 
$ 612,732 $ 616,836 

612,732 616,836 

$ $ 

Fiscal 2020 
$ 594,701 

594,701 

Fiscal2019 ft,-iflcal2018 
$ 573,5~~ 607,582 

607,582 ~~ 
;:__$ ---- ~~ -- ~· --

~ 
$ 5,461,043 $ 5,623,102 $ 5,652,~ $ 5,520,120 $ 5,503,470 

gt 
11.22% 10.97% 0'Jo.s2% 10.39% 11.04% 

0 - ~ Schcd11/e is intended to show informatfrmfor JO yem:1· - additional yemw will be displayed as /hey becm1{)/Rirllable. 

~ 
~ 

~0 
00 

~'?' 
~'?' 

o<;;-
"''< 
~ <) 

Fiscal2017 
$ 578,340 

578,340 

$ 

$ 5,374,273 

10.76% 

D-5 

Fiscal 2016 Fiscal 2015 
$ 595,128 $ 555,047 

595,128 555,047 

$ $ 

$ 5,390,690 $ 5,415,397 

11.04% I0.25% 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REQUffiED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS 

Total OPEB liability: 
Service cost 
Interest 
Changes of benefit terms 
Changes in assumptions 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Benefit payments 
Net change in total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 

Total OPEB liability - ending 

Covered-employee payroll 
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

UNAUDITED) 

$ 

2022 

37,331 $ 
18,864 

2021 

34,53~f 
22~ 
<v<[, "" 

2020 

29,788 
28,785 

41,869 
(1,415) 

(66,123) ~2,553 
(161,965) ~,$:- (30,568) 

__ ,c(4_c4,cc05"-'7)(,0 (51,903) --== 
( {2,578) 

(80,849) 
18,178 

830,367 848,545 ~-==~ 
$ ~ , $ 845,967 ,.$ -~= 

,{> 
./) 32,716,046 $ 33,218,510 $ 

~ ~ 1.9% 2.5% 

848,545 

32,071,836 
2.6% 

(!,,'<;" 
)(/~ 

'5;"'?-0 
Notes: ~'?' 

The information in this schedule is intended to show J~<IJ;rs - additional years will be 
displayed as they become available. X~ 

<::)~ 

2019 

$ 28,292 
33,600 
{4,595) 
17,152 

{30,571) 
(105,882) 
{62,004) 
892,371 

$ 830,367 

$ 31,870,460 
2.6% 

D-6 

2018 

$ 34,567 
32,616 

(74,904) 
25,341 
36,285 

(75,380) 
(21,475) 
913,846 

$ 892,371 

$ 30,867,274 
2.9% 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(A) Budgetary Process 

D-7 

In accordance with the CHARIHO Act, the District has formally established budgetary accounting 
control for its General Fund. The General Fund is subject to an annual operating budget that is 
prepared by the administration of the District Superintendent and submitted to the Regional School 
Committee for approval. The Regional School Committee shall approve a proposed budget which it 
believes will efficiently operate the Regional School District for the ensuing year not later than the 
fifteenth day of February in each year. Not later than the third Tuesday in March of each year, and 
subsequent to the public hearing at the annual regional district meeting on the proposed budget, the 
District School Committee shall adopt a final budget. Within thirty days aft!:_{ the Regional School 
Committee adopts its final proposed budget for the ensuing year, a budget ~'rl:>val referendum must 
be held in each of the member towns on a single day to be determi~"6y the Regional School 
Committee. The vote at referendum shall be for the purpose of apw_;~ng or rejecting the overall 
total district budget as proposed by the Regional School Committ~~'lfod for approving or rejecting 
any special warrant items proposed by the Regional School Cor~."ittee. 

~ 
The School District requires an annual budget for tht()3eneral Fund. The practices used in 
preparation of the 2022 budget differ in certain respect~m the presentation of the actual results of 
operations prepared in accordance with accounting p~@1ples generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAP). The actual results of oper blns, for purposes of the Statement of Revenues 
and Expenditures, Budget and Actual on a Bu ary Basis - General Fund, have been adjusted to a 
basis consistent with the School District's bu t for 2022. 

~ '?" 
Amendments to the operating budget tk!'..:!r do not result in additional appropriations may be made by 
means of a transfer. The Direct~i'fAdministration and Finance has authority to make such 
transfers within departments as~'{fas any transfers up to $1,500. Transfers over $1,500 must be 
approved by the School Com~\fuie. 

(B)Employees' Retirement~'tem (ERS) and Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 
Plans y_"'-

iJ' 
General lnform:@on 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the June 30 measurement date 
prior to the fiscal year end. 

The schedules are intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as 
they become available. 

Employers participating in the State Employee's Retirement System are required by RI General 
Laws, Section 36-10-2, to contribute an actuarially determined contribution rate each year. 

Employers participating in the Municipal Employee's Retirement System are required by RI General 
Laws, Section 45-21-42, to contribute an actuarially determined contribution rate each year. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
D-7 (Continued) 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(B) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) and Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 
Plans (Continued) 

June 30, 2021 measurement date-

There were no changes to the actuarial methods or assumptions reflected in the calculation of the net 
pension liability (asset) of the plans as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date compared to the June 
30, 2020 measurement date. 

June 30, 2020 measurement date - ~ 

As part of the 2020 Actuarial Experience Study for the six-year peri~~ding June 30, 2019 as 
approved by the System Board on May 22, 2020, certain assumptions ~e modified and reflected in 
the determination of net pension liability (asset) at the June 'jf?(f,,'<l.J,020 measurement date. The 
following summarizes the more significant changes in assumpti~ 

~ 
• Updated the underlying mortality tables from the RfH014 set of tables to the public sector-

based PUB (10) tables. .;:y<ef 
• Increased slightly the probabilities ofturnov!)1:.~ 
• Decreased slightly the probabilities ofre~ent. 
• Modified slightly the probabilities of ~~ility, including adding material incidence of 

disability for members in the age ra~s that historically have been eligible to retire but 
under prospective provisions ar~~t. 

~«) 
June 30, 2019 measurement date ,:J<J 

There were no changes in a~Yi:1 methods or assumptions reflected in the calculation of the net 
pension liability (asset) o~ plans as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date compared to the June 
30, 2018 measurement~'e-'. 

5( 
June 30, 2018 m~ement date-

There were no changes in actuarial methods or assumptions reflected in the calculation of the net 
pension liability (asset) of the plans as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date compared to the June 
30, 2017 measurement date. 

June 30, 2017 measurement date-

As part of the 2017 Actuarial Experience Investigation Study for the six-year period ending June 30, 
2016 as approved by the System Board on May 15, 2017, certain assumptions were modified and 
reflected in the determination of the net pension liability (asset) at the June 30, 2017 measurement 
date. The following summarizes the more significant changes in assumptions: 

• Decreased the general inflation assumption from 2.75% to 2.50%; 

• Decreased the nominal investment return assumption from 7 .50% to 7 .00%; 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
D-7 (Continued) 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(BJ Employees' Retirement System (ERS) and Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 
Plans (Continued) 

• Decreased the general wage growth assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%; 

• Decreased salary increase assumptions; and 

• Updated the post-retirement mortality tables to variants of the RP-2014 table. For the 
improvement scale, update to the ultimate rates of the MP-2016 projection scale. 

June 30, 2016 measurement date- ~~ 
~';: 

There were no changes in actuarial methods or assumptions reflec~t~ the calculation of the net 
pension liability (asset) of the plans as of the June 30, 2016 measu.-\ir.urent date compared to the June 
30, 2015 measurement date. J-' 

0~ June 30, 2015 measurement date- p 

There were no changes in actuarial methods or assir@io/ons reflected in the calculation of the net 
pension liability (asset) of the plans as of the June~, 2015 measurement date compared to the June 
30, 2014 measurement date. ,,f3 
The June 30, 2015 measurement dateie 6ft~nation of the net pension liability for the ERS and 
MERS plans reflects changes in be I changes resulting from the settlement of litigation 
challenging the various pension~ m measures enacted in previous years by the General 
Assembly. The final settlement oved by the Court on July 8, 2015 also included enactment of 
the pension settlement provisi~ y the General Assembly. These amended benefit provisions, are 
summarized below: ~ 

~ 
• Employees with ~YeOthan 20 years of service at July I, 2012 will increase their employee 

contribution rat.li~O 11 % for state employees and municipal general employees will contribute 
8.25% (9.25o/~ units with a COLA provision) and participate solely in the defined benefit plan 
going forward - service credit accruals will increase from I% to 2% per year. 

• Members are eligible to retire upon the attainment of: age 65 with 30 years of service, 64 with 31 
years of service, 63 with 32 years of service, or 62 with 33 years of service. Members may retire 
earlier if their RlRSA date is earlier or are eligible under a transition rule. 

• Employees with more than 10 but less than 20 years of service at July I, 2012 will receive an 
increased employer contribution to the defined contribution plan. Also, members who earn less 
than $35,000 per year will not be required to pay the administrative fees to the defined 
contribution plan. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
D-7 (Continued) 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(B) Employees' Retirement System (ERS) and Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 
Plans (Continued) 

• Members who retired from a COLA eligible plan before July I, 2012 will received a one-time 
cost of living adjustment of2% of the first $25,000 paid as soon as administratively possible. 

• Retirees as of June 30, 2015 will receive two $500 stipends; the interim cost of living increases 
will occur at 4 year rather than 5 year intervals. 

• The COLA formula was adjusted to: 50% of the COLA is calculated b:'.J.~king the previous 5-
year average investment return, less 5.5% (5yr Return - 5.5%, withs.e,"uax of 4%) and 50% 
calculated using previous year's CPI-U (max of 3%) for a total max ~I".A of 3.5%. This COLA 
is calculated on the first $25,855, effective January 1, 2016, an~t1;~xed as of that date as well. 
(The indexing formula is run annually regardless of funding lev~ach year.) 

{:-
• Minor adjustments were made to the actuarial reduction f~ployees choosing to retire early. 

cP 
(C) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

0
.._::;<lf 

The schedules are intended to show information~~ years - additional years will be displayed as 
they become available. 'i" 

~Q 
Actuarial Assumptions ~ 'i" 

~ 
The total OPEB liability in the June~~022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied ~all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: ~~ 

Actuarial Valuation f9te: July I, 2022 « 
Disconnt Rate: ~,<._ 4.09% as of June 30, 2022 and 2.19% as of July I, 2021 for 

Q<iJ' accounting disclosure purposes. 

Payroll Growth: 3.00% (2.50% general inflation and 0.50% real wage inflation). 

Inflation Rate: 2.50% per year. 

Cost Method: Entry Age Normal Level% Salary. 

Health Care Trend Rates: 7.5% for 2022, decreasing by 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 
4.5% for 2029 and later years. 

Spouse Coverage: Spousal coverage for current retirees is based on actual data. 70% 
of employees are assumed to be married at retirement. Husbands 
are assumed to be three years older than wives. 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
D-7 (Continued) 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(C) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued) 

Mortality: MERS - SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount Weighted Mortality 
Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021. RI ERS - SOA 
Pub-2010 Teachers Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully 
generational using Scale MP-2021. Surviving Spouses - SOA Pub 
20 IO Contingent Survivor Headcount Weighted Mortality Table 
fully generational using Scale MP-2021. 

80 



~ 
~~ 

«:-~ 
~"-«,,«,, 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNME_~AL FUNDS 
g/0 

0'0 
• Non-Major Speci~evenue Funds 

• Non-Major D~ervice Funds 

• Non-Majo~,<(Tapital Project Funds 
~0 

0«-; 
~'?-

~'?-
o«:-

"'-«. 
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Assets 

Cash and co.sh equivalents 
Due from other governments 

Otte from other funds 

Accounts receivable (net) 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll and benefits 

Unearned Revonuo 
Duo to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 

Restricted 

Committed 

Tola! Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON~MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

Special Revenue Funds 

Tille I 
IDEA 
PortB 

IDEA 
Preschool 

Title IV School Improvement 
Title I Personal Leaming 1003(a) Support 

$ 
281,459 11,432 

$ -- $ 
159,572 

-- $ 
31,651 

281,459 $ 

28,998 

252,461 

281,459 

11,432 $ 

270 

270 

159,572 $ 

7,717 

7 717 

635 
523 

30,493 

31,651 

7, 71 7 =-$ --~'"1.,.6'-'-51 $ 

ARP 
ELC Epidemic 

L,b 

47,891 

47 891 

47 891 
47,891 

47,891 

$ 

$ 

E-1 

Title JI 

40,189 

40,189 

5,543 

34,646 
40,189 

40189 
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Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other govemments 

Due from other funds 

Accounts receivable (net) 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Unearned Revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

l<'llud Balances 

Restricted 

Committed 

Tola! Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balm1ces 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENr AL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

S edal Revenue Funds 

Titlolll 
Lnnguage 

Acquisition 

1,021 
$ 

Long Term Plan 
Even Year 

36,791 
$ 

Perkins 

Secondary 

1,021 •'--~'e,6,.:7"'-91 

1,021 
l 021 

36,791 ,, ___ _::;-- $ 

Pandemic 
EBT Local 

5,024 
4912 
9,936 

9,936 $ 

Race to the Top 
Early Lenming 

Challenge 

RI Department of 

Human Services 
Rising Stars 

127 $ 141 

127 ~•-__ ,cl 4""1 

127 141 

127 141 

E-1 (Continued) 

RI State Council 
for the Arts 

841 

841 

841 

841 

127 $ 141 0$ ___ _,8:::,41 
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Assets 

Cash and cash eciuivalents 
Due from oilier governments 
Due from other funds 
Acoounts receivable (net) 

Toflll Assets 

Llnbilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and bonofits 
Unearned Revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Dalames 

Restricted 
Committed 

Total Ftmd Balames 

Total Liabilities and Fm1d Balances 

$ 

$ 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

S ecinl Revenue Funds 

ere 
Categoric Ill 
Odd Year 

117,924 $ 

117,924 $ 

16,857 

16 857 

ere 
Categorical 
Even Year 

231,568 $ 

231,568 $ 

Gates 
Foundation 

•• $ 

300 

8 

8 

300 $ 

Categorical 
Funding 

6,332 

6,332 

136,528 

136,528 

142,860 $ 

E-1 (Contimied) 

RI RI Foundation RI Foundation 
Foundation Professional Dev SPARK Grant 

.. $ 40 $ 676 

8,539 

8,539 $ 40 $ 676 

8,539 40 676 

8,539 40 676 

s,539 "'----'4""0 01 ___ ,ec67oc6 
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Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Accounts receivable (net) 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Unearned Revenue 
Due to other funds 

Totlll Liabilities 

Fund Blllanccs 

Rostricted 
Committed 

Total J<'nnd Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balanceii 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

S11ednl Revenue Funds 

Community 
2000 Foundation 

$ 

$ 

AMGEN 
Grant 

Gen Youth 
Foundation 

884 

884 

Westerly 
Credit Union 

4 

21 

21 

Culinary 
Foundalion 

$ 163 $ 

163 

163 

E-1 (Continued) 

Champlin 
Foundation 

59,380 

35,150 

35,150 

24,230 

24,230 

884 <'----''"' •'----"' •'----""""' •'--~'cc9,"38~0 
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Assets 

Cash and cnsh equivalents 
Due from other governments 

Due from other funds 
Accounts receivable (net) 

Total Assets 

Llabilitllls 

Accounts payablo 
Accrued payroll and benefits 

Unearned Rovenue 
Duo to othorfunds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 

Restricted 

Committed 

Total F1md Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

S ecial Revemm F1mds 

Student 
Activities 

225,670 $ 

222 

185 
407 

Walmnrt 
Grant 

39 $ 

Title IV lwtary Club 

11,528 

6,680 

6,680 

11,528 $ 6,680 $ 

E-1 (Continued) 

EL CTC 
Categorical National FFA Categorical 

Funding Foundation Welding 

-- $ 233 ' 1,066 
256 

256 $ 233 ' I 066 

256 

256 

233 1,066 

233 1,066 

256 $ 233 0$ ___ ~1,~06"6 
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Assets 

Cash ood C!ISh equivalents 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Accounts receivable (net) 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Unearned Revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Linbililies 

F1md Balances 

Restricted 
Committed 

Total F1111d Balnnces 

Total Liabilities 1111d Fund Balnmes 

$ 

$ 

CHARTI-IO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MA.JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

Family 
Emergency 

Funds 

1,374 $ 

Lynch 
Scholarshi 

1374 ,$ ___ _:: 

NAESP 
Crayola 

Special Revenue Funds 

STEM 
Mini Grant 

1,548 $ 

$ 

1,548 

1,548 

1,548 ,$ ___ _:;-- $ 

E-1 (Continued) 

CTC NEA Donations 
Categorical Foundation Field Trips 

2,102 $ -- $ 1,591 

2,102 $ $ 1,591 

2,102 1,591 

2,102 1591 

2,102 ,$ ___ _::-- 0$ __ ---"1'""~1 
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Assets 

Cash £111d cash equivalents 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Accounts receivable (net) 

Total Assets 

Liahililies 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Unearned Rovonue 
Duo to othor funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fnml Balances 

&lstt'icled 
Committed 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

$ 

$ 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

Donations 
Private 

Providence 
Engineering Society 

Robotics 

41,710 $ 

44 

41,754 $ 

500 $ 

Lovett 
Foundation 

S11edal Revenue F1mds 

198 $ 

198 

198 

American 
Council 

Intl Travel 

2,405 

2,405 

2,405 

National 
Society Americ!lll 

Revolution 

School Building 
Authority Capital 

COVID 

$ 16,273 

$ 16,273 

16,273 

16,273 

E-1 (Continued) 

School Building 
Authority Capital 

$ 24,156 

$ 24,156 

1,970 

1,970 

22,186 

22,186 

500 $ 198 $ 
2405 "'---~' $ 16,273 "-'---'2'-'4_,,l"'-56 
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Assets 

Cash and eash equivalents 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Accounts receivable (net) 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Unearned Revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

F1md Balances 

Restricted 
Committed 

Totnl Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities mid Fund Balances 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

S lal Revc1111e Fu11tls 

$ 

$ 

ESSER II 

8,178 $ 
99,982 

108,160 

ESSER Ill 

$ 

RI Trust 
SRfety 
Grant 

25 

25 

Development 
Donations 

30 

30 

30 

30 

E-1 (Continuetl) 

Total 
Special Revenue 

Funds 

$ 923,337 
1,188,446 

8,883 

$ 2,120 666 

146,126 
71,946 

5,024 
1,077,472 

1,300,568 

820,098 

820,098 

$ 108,160 $ 453 933 ~$---~'~' ~·---~3~0 ~$-~'~· '"''o",66=6 
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Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other governments 
Duo from other funds 
Accounts receivable (net) 

Total Assets 

Lillbllitios 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Unearned Revenue 
Due lo other funds 

Totlll Lh1bilities 

Fund Balances 

Rostricted 
Committed 

Totnl Fund Balnnces 

Total Liabilities and F11nd Bnlanccs 

$ 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

Debt Service Funds Capital Project Funds 

Capital Projects 
Member Towns Member Towns 

Debt Service 
Fund 

Total 
Debt Service 

Funds 

Capital Projects 
Housing Aid 

Fund 
Contributions RYSE Capital 

.. $ 

136,574 

136,574 $ 

•• $ 

136,574 

136 574 $ 

1,520,863 $ 

1,186,354 

I 186 354 

Fund Project Fund 

12,954 

25,019 

37,973 

37,973 
1,522,811 

1,522,811 37 973 

$ 

$ 

136,574 $ 1,520,863 $ 1,522 811 $ 37,973 $ 

Total 
Capital Project 

Funds 

3,053,628 

28,019 

3 081,647 

15,881 

318 628 
334,509 

37,973 
2,709 165 

2,747,138 

$ 

$ 

E-1 (Concluded) 

Total 
Non-mnjor 

Governmental 
Funds 

3,976,965 
1,188,446 

173,476 

5,338,887 

162,007 
71,946 

5,024 
1,396,100 
1,635 077 

994,645 
2,709,165 

3,703 810 

3,081,647 '$'--~'~-3~3~8~,8""87 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

ftel'COUCS 

Conlrib11lion,; ofpnrticiputing !owns 
Intergovernmental 

Contributions iltld llimntions 

Total Revenues 

ExJJendlt11res 
Employee oompensation 
Employee benofi1s 
Purchased profe1sional iltld lcclmical sorvices 
Purchased property services 
Other purohosed scrvicc1 
Supplie1 
Miscellaneous 
Capital outlays 
Deb/ serv/ce; 

Principal 
Interest 

Tn11d Ex]lcnditul'<..'5 

Excc,;s {Deficiency) of Revenues Owr (Under) Exjlcnditurcs 

Before Other llinandngS"n•'ffl (Uses) 

Other }'inuncing Sources (Uses) 
lsiuonC<J ofbond1, noCoo and lense purchase obligntions 
Trnnsforsin 
Tron1fc111 out 

Total Dtl1er Fin~ndng Sonrl-.:s (Uses) 

Net Clrnngl'll ln Fund Il11lances 

Fund BnluHl'eS. Beginaing of Year 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE JO, 2022 

!DllA 
PartB 

•• $ 

850,436 

850,436 

461,926 
245,886 
72,230 

50,619 
16,983 
2,792 

IDEA 
Preschool 

•• $ 

26,314 

26 314 

23,797 
1,820 

S cclnl Rcvcm1c Fun di 

Title I 
Tille IV School lmprovemen( 

Title! Porsonnl L<laming I003(u) Support 

•• $ 

378,981 

378,981 

371482 

7,499 

270 

6,000 

1,717 

7,717 

.. 
82,606 

82,606 

48,7S9 
3,S23 
9,196 

981 
20,066 

81 

82 606 

$ 

ARP 
ELC Epidemic 

Lab 

.. 
102,814 

102,814 

9S,771 
7,043 

102,814 

$ 

E-2 

Title II 

82,470 

82,470 

59,328 
16,527 
3,745 

7,499 
2,870 

89969 

(7.499) 

7,499 

7 499 

llund llolnnccs - Ead of Yew '----=·· ,, ____ ..:;·· ,, ___ .:;·· ~·----= 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

S cclnl Revenue Funds 

E-2 (Continued) 

Titlo Ill 
Langungo 

Acquisition 

Rncolo (he Top RI Depart,uonl of 

RcvCllUCS 

Contributions of pnrlicipnting towns .. ' lntCl"JlOl'llmmcntal 1,021 
Contributions mad donations 

Totnl Revenues 1,021 

E~pcnditure1 
llmployoo componsntion 
llmployee benefits 
Purchased professional nnd technical sorvlces 30 
Pnrohnsed property scrvicei 
Other purobased services 39 
Supplies 622 
Miscellrnacous 
C,,pital outlays 330 
Dehl service; 

Principal 

Interest 

Lo11g Tenn Pinn 
Eve11 Yoar 

.. 
58,710 

58,710 

19,257 
10,139 
3,199 

' 

Perkin, 
Secondary 

Pnndcmic 
EBT Locnl 

Early Leaming 
Clrnllengo 

#<vf .. $ .. 
7,391 

7,391 (if'~91; 
"-<; 

~~ '·'" Q; 2,251 
Qi I 

.:::,'<I .. 
16,171 ~ Cj 

~~l()' 

'Sc'<:) .. 
, '?:' 

Tolal Ex11endltures ~' 58,710 7391 4,912 l,021~ 

0~ Excess (Delidcncy) 11rU.evcnues Over {Under) ExpcndHure& 

Bllforc Olllcr Financing Sources (U~es) 0 .. 
'Sc'~ 

Olher Flnanclng Sources (U!es) ~'?' lssu1111ce of bonds, notes and loasc, purchase obligatioas 
Tronifor.i in o'<:-
Trnnsferi; out "'«. Total OIiier Floanclng Soun;e~ (U,cs) 

15 Net Cluu1gcs in Fund Bal:mccs 
◊ 

Fund Bnlaaces - Beginning of Year 127 

Fn11d Bal:mces - End of Year .. $ .. ' .. $ .. $ 127 

Human Services RI Stale Couocil 
Rising Stnrs for the Ans 

' . . $ 
756 

756 

751 

751 

141 836 

141 841 
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Revenues 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRlCT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

CTC 
Catcgorioal 
Odd Year 

CTC 
Cotegorical 
llven Year 

Gnte.s 
Foundation 

S icclal Revenue Funds 

Cntegorical 
Funding 

RI 
Foundation 

RI Foundation 
Professional Dev 

Contributions of pmticipa1ing lowns 
!ntorgovemmentnl 

.. ' 
222,630 

•• $ 

203,415 
•• $ 

Con!ributions and doun1ions 
Totnl Revenues 

Ex])coditurcs 
Einployco componsation 
Employee benefils 
Purchased professional und tcclutical services 
Purchased ])roperty services 
Other purchased services 
Supplies 
Miocellaneous 
Capitol outlays 
Debi serv/1,e; 

Principal 

Interest 

Total ExpcndUures 

Ex(css (Deficiency) of lkvc11ucs Over (U11dcr) Expenditures 

Ik:forc Olhcr Fi11ancing Sa11rces (Use!i) 

Other Fhmncing Sources (Uses) 
Is,muncc of bonds, notes and lcaso pmohaso obligations 
Tro11sfe111ia 

Trnnsfers out 

Totnl Other Flo,mcing Sources (Uses) 

Net ChMgt'll in Fund B:llnnccs 

Fnnd Ilalanccs • &ginning ofYcnr 

Fllnd Ilnlanccs - lludofYcor 

222630 

22,317 

12,229 
80,747 

27,597 

79,740 

21327 

101,067 

203,415 

1,000 
74 

19,603 

140,221 

89,330 

229,551 

3,612 

59,116 

62,728 

123,869 

12,659 

136,528 

2,080 
159 

2,239 

(2,239) 

10 778 

8,539 

40 

40 

E-2 (Co11tinucd) 

Rl Fo1u1dalion 
SPARK Grant 

676 

676 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Revenues 
Conlributiom ofpnrlidpaling towns 
[nlcrgovommontal 

Contributions nnd do1rnlions 
Tat11l Revenues 

Ex1,c11ditu1"C1 
Employee co1npcnsnlio11 
Employee bonefils 
Purchased professionnl and technical scrvicos 
P11rchnsed property services 
Odicr p11rclmsed services 
Supplies 
Miscellaneous 
Cnpilnl outlays 
Debi re/'Wae; 

Principal 

Interest 

Total Expc11dltnrcs 

Eucu {DcHdc11cy) of lle,,cnuC-'I Over (Under) Expcmlilurcs 
Before Other Fl11a11clng Sources (Usc1) 

Other Flnm1dng Sources (Uscs) 

Issuance of bond,, notes and lcoso purchaso obligaliom 
Trnnsfers in 

Tmnsfers out 

Tat1II Other Flnanch1gSourtcs (U.ies) 

Net Cllongc1 in Fund Bal:1ncC-'l 

Fund Balnnces - BeginningofYeur 

Fu1id Balances - End of Year 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE JO, 2022 

Community 
2000 l'oundation 

.. ' 
31,748 
31,748 

13,799 

1,634 
21,258 

2,683 

(7,626) 

17 394 

9,768 

AMOEN 
Orant 

.. ' 

244 

244 

S cclnl Revenue Funds 

GenYolltl• 
Foundntio11 

.. ' 

884 

884 

Wostcrly 
Credit Union 

98l 

98l 

21 

21 

Cnlirnuy 
Fonnda1ion 

.. ' 

Clark 
Found11tio11 

.. 

58,696 
58,696 

63,344 

63 344 

(4,648) 

(4,648) 

4,811 

16l 

' 

E-2 (Continnccl) 

Chmnpli11 
Foundn1ion 

67,305 

67,305 

16,218 

27,268 

43,486 

23 819 

23,819 

411 

24,230 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Conlributions of porticipa1ing towns 
Intergovemruenlol 

Con!ribution, and donations 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
llmployee Cllnlpertsntion 
Employee benefits 
Purchased protcssional and loclmicnl services 
Purchased proporly sorvicos 
Other purcltascd servicos 
Supplies 
Miscc!lnncous 
Capilnl outlays 
Debtse,..,,/ce: 

Principal 

lntcrosl 
Total E~pcnditurcs 

Exrois (Deficiency) orRcvc1111cs Over (Under) Expenditure, 

Before Other Financing Sourec1 (Uses) 

Other Fionucing Sources (UsCJ) 
bsunoco of bonds, notes nod lease purchase oblign1ion, 
Transfers in 

Trnniirors oul 

Totnl Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Clumgc11 ln Fund Bnlnnces 

Fund Bnh1ncCJ - Beginning or Year 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

St••dent 
Activities 

.. ' 

121,938 

375 

224,888 

Wnlmmt 
Grnnl Ti!lelV 

-- ' 

34 764 

39 

S eclnl Revenue Fonds 

Rotary Club 

2,465 

2,465 

1,921 

1,921 

4 759 

EL 
Cntegoricnl 

Funding 

256 

256 

National FFA 
Foondnlion 

233 

l<'nnd Bnlnnccs • End or Year $ 225,263 39 ~------ ,, ___ ,0,,0,,,0 ,_ __ .....;:·· ~·---=23"3 

R-2 (Co111lnuc1l) 

CTC 
Categorical 

Welding 

3,211 

3 211 

(3,211) 

(3,211) 

4 277 

1,066 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

RC\'CIIUCI 

Contributions of parlioipating towns 
lnlol"jlovemmenlal 

Contributions and donations 
Total Re\'cnuct 

El11cndituros 
Employco cr;,mpcn3nlion 
Employoo benefits 
Purolinsed professional l!Ild teclmical sorvices 
P11roltased property services 
Olhcr pnrolmsed services 
Snpplies 
Miscellaneous 
Capital outlays 
JJehl service· 

Principal 

Interest 

Total Expcndlturos 

Excess (Delldcncy) of Revenues Over (Under) Expcnclitu res 

Before Oilier Financing Sources (Utes) 

Olhcr FilrnndngSoun:es (U!es) 
issuru,c;, of bonds, notes nnd loaso purohllSo obligalions 
Tronefcr.i in 

Transfers out 
Total Other FhumclugSm,nes (U.ic~) 

Net Chaogt-. iu Fund Balances 

Fnnd IlnlRnces - IleginningofYeur 

Fund Ilal~11ces - llnd ofYetlr 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

l'omily 
Emergency 

fonds 
Lynell 

Scholnrship 
NAESP 
Crayola 

S lcciul ReYcnue Funds 

STEM 
Mini Grant 

.. ' •• $ •• $ 

1,000 
1,000 

1,000 

4,796 

I 374 I 548 

1,374 ,_ ___ _;:·· '''---''~'o,48 

CTC 
Categorical 

.. 

4,940 

4,940 

(4,940) 

(4,940) 

7,042 

2,102 

NllA 
Found11tion 

$ .. $ 

4,209 
4,209 

2,142 

2,067 

4 209 

E-2 (Continued) 

Donation.s 
Field Trips 

512 

512 

3,793 

3 793 

(3,281) 

(3,281) 

4,872 

~---..::·· '''---''~·'"-'" 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT E-2 (Contin11crt) 
COMBlNING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

RcvcnuC!i 
Contributlolls of parlicipalillg towns 
lntcrgovcmmolltol 

Contributions 1111d donnlions 

Totnl Revenues 

Ex11cnditurcs 
Employee compensation 
Employee benefits 
Purohased profession~] mid !eclmical services 
Purchased properly services 
OLhcr pnrolmsed services 
S11pplfos 
Mi11eallnncous 
Capital outlays 
D!!bt service· 

Priucipi!l 

lalcrest 
Total Ex[}C11d1turcs 

ElCCiS {Dcticic11cy) ofRcvemtC!i Over {U11der) E~pcndilurcs 
Before Other Finnnd11g S011rcc11 (Use!!) 

Other Finm1ci11g Sources (Uses) 
lssuauoo of bonds, note, l!Ild lellse purcha.so oblignlions 
Transfers in 

Transfers out 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE JO, 2022 

Donations 
Private 

Providcnco 
Engineering Society 

Robotics 
Lowu 

Foundation 

S ~iQI Revenue Funrt1 

An1ericm1 
Council 

lntlTmvel 

National Scl100] Building 
Sooiety American Authority CIIJ)ilal 

Revolu!ion COVID 
Sclmol Buildh,g 
Authority Capital 

.. ' .. ' .. ' 
27 !31 

27,131 

1,120 

"' 
293 

12,269 

500 
500 

__ __._,13,,,_,,.,,_67~ , ... ~ .. '---= ----= ----= 

--~4~<0~~~---~"""' -----= ---'~·'""'" -----= ------= 

33,860 

33 860 

(33,860) 

Total Other Finm1ch1g Sources (Usc1) 

Net Changes in Fund D~fonccs 

~"<' 
0~ 

,<,_'<--~ 

# Q 13,364 2,382 (33,860) 

Fn11d Ilnlnncei - llcginning of Year 28,390 -----~ ____ _,1,,,_, _____ ,,,_, ____ __,_ ----~ ---"''''"''=' 
Fnnd B~l:1ncei - Ei1d of Year 41,754 "-------"'°"'O "------'l"'-98 "---~2~,4""'05 "-------" ''-----=·· ,,c..... __ 2~2~,1=86 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE J0,2022 

ESSER II ESSER III 

S iccinl Revenue Funds 

RITmst 
Safety 
Grunt 

Development 
Donations 

~# 
~~::~:::o::ldonations 715,921 4S3,933 fr~

9
; 

Revenues 
Contributions of participating towns -- $ -- $ --

200 
Totnl Revenues 715,921 4S3 933 ;Jj, 998 

Eipcnditurcs t::-"' 
Eniployweompcnsnlion 35,147 l~OI 
Employee benefits 7,259 
Purchased professional 1111d technical services 117,845 {, 09 
Purchased property service• _ ,8-/ 
Other pnrclrnsed services C:;J V 
Supplies 20,890 :-<., 99,892 

~~::
1
1
1
::;:;, 534~-<:J' 268,345 

D~:,:;~~~; ~() --
Interest ~ x'.: 

Totnl Eipcndlture.s iiJ,, '- 715,921 

Execs, (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Ex]Jendltures ~~<(; 
'!?-0 

Otltcr Fhta11dogS011rce.s (Uji(!jl) ~ 
lssullilce of bonds, 11o(es nnd lea10 pnrchoso oblignti<py ~ 
'J"rnnsfeni in Q '("" 
Trnnsfeniout «: 

Totnl OIiier FlnnncingSourtes (Uses) x"'-
Net Chnngc1 in Fu11d Bnlaitccs <::)~ 

Before Otllcr Flnondng SouITes (Use~) 

97] 

453.'m 97] 

25 

25 

20-0 

5,000 

200 

5,200 

(5,000) 

(5,000) 

Fund Bulnnce! - Beginning of Year 5 030 

Fund B:llanccs - End ofYenr JO ,_ __ _;:-- ,, ___ _::; '----"''5 '------"' 

E-2 (Continued) 

Total 
Special Revenue 

Funds 

$ 

3,493,745 
255 058 

3,748,803 

1,023,089 
418,355 
473,434 

96,695 
340,191 
144,363 
931,260 

3 427 387 

321416 

7,499 
(7,499) 

321,416 

498,682 

820,098 
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Revenues 
Contribn1ion, of participating towns 
ln!ergoVtlmmentnl 

Contribulic,rui and dc,nnlions 

Totnl Rcvca1ue.s 

Ex11c11dlturcs 
Employee corupensntion 
Employee benefits 
Purcl,ascd professional and lecbnical services 
Purcl,ascd proporly sorvicos 
Other purchased sorvieos 
Supplies 
Miicollancous 
Capital outlays 
l),:h/servlc'<I: 

Princip~l 
lnlcros( 

Totul Expc11diturcs 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCIIB 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Debt Service Funds Capita! Pro.lctt Funds 

Capitol Projects 
MomborTowns Tot~l Capitol Projec!.i McmbcrTowm1 

Debi Service Debt Servico Housing Aid Contributions R YSE Capilnl 
Fund Funds Fond Fund Prc,ject Fund 

--),$ 817,372 817,372 -- ' 1,735,897 1,735,897 431,002 ft.(,_: 
2,553,269 2,553,269 431 002 ;g -

,J:-,(, 
0~ 

0 --
-:::,'<I --

--c-,Cj 

~ f 145,470 467,683 

1,045,000 ~.ooo 
966 666 ., x'°:%6,666 

2,011666 ~' 2,011,666 145,470 467 683 

--

ElCCSS {Dctkicncy) of Revenues Over (Under) Expcnclit11res 
~<;; 

~(21,«;, Before Other llinundng Suurce.s (Use,c) 541 603 285,532 (467,683) 

Other lliun,idug Soun:a (Um) 'iS' 
Issuance ofbonds,nole, and lease purchase obliga!ions ~~ Transfers in '<o 1,461,068 
Transfers oul (53S,S63) (535,563) (36,356) 

Total Other FinandngSourees {Uses) x" (535J63) (535,563) (36,356) 1461 068 

Net Chm1gcs in F1md Bnlnnce.s <::>~ 6,040 6,040 24'1,176 993,385 

ll11nd BRIUDCCll - Beginning or Your 130 534 130,534 937178 529,426 37,973 

llnnd llnh1nces - End of Y oar 136,574 136,574 1,186 354 1,522,811 37,973 

E-2 (Coocludcd) 

Tolal 
Tolnl Non-major 

Capitol Project Governmental 
Funds Funds 

' -- ' 817,372 
431,002 5,660,644 

255 058 
431,002 6,733,074 

1,023,089 
418,355 
473,434 

96,15'15 
340,1'11 
144,363 

613,153 1,544,413 

1,045,000 
%6,666 

613 153 6 052 206 

(182,151) 680,868 

1,461,068 1,468,S67 
(36,356) (57'1,418) 

1,424 712 889149 

1,242,561 l,57D,017 

I 504,577 2,133,793 

2,747,138 3,703,810 
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Assets 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other fonds 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Due to oilier funds 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Business-Type Activities 
Night 
School 

Remedial 

30,986 $ 

I 211 

32,197 

32 197 

Adult 
Education 
Program 

112,436 $ 

112,436 

14,701 

Adult 
Continuing 
Education 

2,515 $ 

6 997 

9,512 

9,512 $ 

Athletics 
Program 

80 

80 

1 028 

1,028 $ 

CTC 
Programs 

48,399 $ 

48,399 

20,450 

20,450 

27,949 

Before 
School 
Program 

Total 
Non-Major 

Proprietary Funds 

30,200 $ 225,644 

8,208 

30,200 

30,200 

30,200 

233,852 

80 
65,351 

65,431 

168,421 

27,949 ,.s ------- ~$ __ 1,,60,8,c:42""1 
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CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
F-2 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Night 
School 

Remedial 
Operating Revenue 

Charges for usage nnd service ,$~---"2~50 $ 
Totnl Opernting Revenue 

Operating Expenses 
lnsbuction 
Operations 

Fringe benefits 

Total OperQflng Expenses 

Changes in Net Position 

250 

4,800 

361 

5,161 

(4,911) 

Net Position - Beginning of Year ____ 3c7=10=8 

Net Position - End of Year $ 32,197 $ 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Business-T e Activities 
Adult Adult 

Education Continuing 
Program Education 

25,700 0$~----
25,700 

24,481 

1,853 

26,334 

(634) 

98,369 

97,735 $ 

Athletics 
Program 

9,861 $ 

9 861 

I 028 $ 

CTC 
Programs 

13,892 

2,826 

25 123 

Before Total 
School Non-Major 
Program Proprietary Funds 

2s,031 '''--------"'~o.~,6e,6 
28,037 80,566 

28,037 

28,037 

57,318 
24,837 

2 214 

84,369 

(3,803) 

172,224 

27,949 ,$ ___ _ $ 168,421 

100 



C,1sh Flows from Operating Activitie.1 
Cash rcecivcd from customers 
Cash paid to employees 

Cash paid to suppliers 

Net Cnsh (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities 

Cnslt FloWll from Noncopihl Finnncing Activitiei; 

Advances (to) from olher funds 

Net CRsh (med in) Provided By Noncnpital Finondng Activities 

Net (Decrease) lnct·eQse in Cnsh 

Cash• Beginning of Year 

CQsh - End of Year 

Reconciliation ofChm1ge In Net Position lo 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Aclivilies 

Change in ncl position 
Adjustments to reconcile: 

Increase in acoounts p.tynblc 

(Decrease) in nccrued expenses 

Net Cash (Used i11) Provided by Operating Activities 

CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Night Adult Adult 
School Educnlion Continuing 

Remedial Progrmn Educnlion 

Business-L cActivilies 

Alhlclics 
Program 

CTC 
Progmms 

Before 
School 
Program 

F-3 

Total 
Non-Major 

Proprietmy Fnnds 

250 $ 25,700 -- $ 9,861 16,718 28,037 $ 80,566 
(60,861) 
(24,757) 

(5 052) 

(6,086) (26,738) -- ~~ -- (28,037) 

------= ------= ____ .. ~~JI0,865) --~(!~'-~"'~'' -----= 
(5,836) (1,038) ·- # (1,004) ---~'~·'=" 

~ 
___ (~5~,9""-26) __ _c(l~7d,S£29) __ __.,,J~,/,-i~~=o) ____ _ 
___ (~5~,9,s26) (17529) ~\316) ------= 

~ 
(1s,s61J 0o (2,J16J 

131~ff---~'~••=31 ---~2~,1=12 

"------''"'·"""'6 $ #- 436 

,j.5 
(4~,t,Q 

{<,,~ .. 80 

(11,762) 

42,748 

2,515 

(1,004) 

1,108 

(634) $ •• $ 

25,616 

25,616 

2,825 25,616 

45,574 4,584 

$ 48 399 ' 30,200 

(1,084) $ 2,826 •• $ 

(156) 

(156) 

(30,824) 

230,852 

225,644 

(3,803) 

80 
(1,329) ~~ rns) ----'<"''°'"'' -----= ------= ~f:i (5,836) '---~{l~,0~3~8) ,.__ ___ _.:: "---~(l~,0~0~4) 2,826 '''----~-- ·'---<~'~·'=52) 

~ 
~~ ,,_o 

x-<.. 
Q«.--'<' 

101 





To the School Committee, Audit Committee and Management of 
Chariho Regional School District 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Chariho 
Regional School District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered Chariho Regional 
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Chariho 
Regional School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do ot express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Chariho Regional School District's internal co 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited p 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intern 
significant deficiencies and therefore material weaknes 

ed in the preceding paragraph 
t be material weaknesses or 
ciencies may exist that were 

deficiency in internal control that we not identified. However, as discussed below, we ide 
consider to be a material weakness. 

A deficiency in internal control exists 
management or employees, in the norm 
detect and correct, misstatements 
combination of deficiencies in inte 
misstatement of the entity's financ1 
timely basis. We consider lo 
control to be a material w 

peration of a control does not allow 
form g their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

is. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
t there is a reasonable possibility that a material 

not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
deficiency in Chariho Regional School District's internal 

Untimel Removal of Au or on District Bank Account 

During our audit of the District und a former employee who was an authorized signor on a District 
cash account during their tenure was not timely removed from the account upon separation from the 
District. Not removing the employee in a timely manner left the District susceptible to potential asset 
misappropriation of District funds. 

We recommend the District establish policies and internal controls that put in place a process to update 
and remove separated employees who were authorized signors from all relevant financial and non­
financial accounts immediately upon separation. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, school committee 
and audit committee, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Providence, RI 
January XX, 2023 



CHARIHO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LETTER OF OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2022 



January XX. 2023 

To the Members of the School Committee and 
the Audit Committee 
Chariho Regional School District 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Chariho Regional School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered Chariho 
Regional School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for 
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanc for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpo f expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Chariho Regional School District's inter rol. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Chariho Regio istrict's internal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware o 
strengthening internal controls and operating efficie 
letter summarizes our comments and sugge tions reg 

alters t t are opportunities for 
memorandum that accompanies this 

g those matters. This letter does not 
ements of Chariho Regional School affect our report dated January XX, 2023, o 

District. 

discussed many of these com 
be pleased to discuss them in fu 
of these matters, or to ass· 

This communication 
Committee, and mana 
should not be, used by an 

Sincerely, 

Marcum LLP 

g our next audit engagement. We have already 
with various District personnel, and we will 

r convenience, to perform any additional study 
lementing the recommendations. 

y fo the information and use of the School Committee, Audit 
riho Regional School District, and is not intended to be, and 
than these specified parties. 



Risk Assessment/Management Programs and Accounting Policies and Procedures 

A formal risk assessment/management program will help management identify, manage, and 
reduce various risks throughout the District. In addition, maintaining an updated accounting 
policies and procedures manual will not only aid in the training of new employees and help ensure 
that the procedures used are proper, but will also help reduce misunderstandings, errors, inefficient 
effort, duplicated or omitted procedures, and other situations that can result in inaccurate or 
untimely accounting records. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the District continue work on formalization of their risk 
assessment/management programs to help identify risks within the District and develop 
procedures to mitigate or eliminate potential issues. We recommend that the District 
continue to review and update their current accountin licies and procedures manual. 
This manual should identify the controls that are in help reduce the risk of fraud, 
errors, or irregularities from occurring and goi by management. In the 
process of the comprehensive review of exist' accounting icies and procedures for 
the purpose of updating the manual, mana ent · t discov procedures that can be 
eliminated or improved to make the system cient and effective. 

Information Technolo 

Robust annual trainin a of cybersecurity is a critical element for 
safeguarding the Distr ation in addition to its financial information. 
Studies continually d neering and personal failure to adhere to an 
organization's polici are leading factors in cybersecurity attacks and network 
breaches. The Dist · io · provements over the past year including updated back 
up systems, a Cyber stru ture Security Agency (CISA) assessment and continuing 
implementation of the mentation and Security Policy (WISP) enacted in FY2021. 
Regular assessments an rovides several benefits, such as identifying vulnerabilities, 
provision of recommendatio or enhancements to keep pace with trends in the methods and 
sophistication of attacks and breaches, and assistance with security system planning and budgeting 
to ensure risks are appropriately minimized. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the District develop and implement policies and procedures for 
cybersecurity education and training for all employees, to be completed on at least an 
annual basis, with focus on District policies and procedures as well as general training on 
how to identify and appropriately respond to current security threats. Further, we 
recommend the District further consider the implementation of additional periodic, 
independent IT security assessments and system testing to evaluate the IT infrastructure 
and security protocols in place and provide recommendations for pro-active enhancements. 



Settling of Due toffiue from Accounts through Pooled Cash 

The District utilizes pooled cash arrangement to manage its main cash account across the majority 
all funds. In conjunction with this arrangement, various due to/due from accounts are maintained 
to track activity when one fund is deemed to have funded an expenditure on behalf of another fund, 
which primarily occurs when grant expenditures are paid and the District is awaiting 
reimbursement from the grantor for such costs .. It was noted in our audit that the District does not 
have a formal policy of settling these due to/due from accounts across funds throughout the year. 
This resulted in year-end adjustments to reflect such inter-fund reimbursements and properly 
reflect individual fund cash positions in the pooled cash account. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the District amend its accountin 
to evaluate due to/from accounts as part of its 
reporting process to ensure the allocation of t 

edures manual to include a step 
econciliation and financial 

ccount balance is proper 
amongst all funds. 

In accordance with its policy on General 
reappropriates a portion of the un fu 
budgetary process to allocate fu g an 

balance, the District commits and 
alance for the next fiscal year as part of the 
nual member town contributions. The District 

also appropriately approves the · d balance for specific programmatic purposes 
with School Committee ap val. g our auait we observed that the School Committee action 
to commit funds for d s at June 30, 2021 was also the same approval used to 
support the actual a er of such funds for expenditure during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2022. 

Recommendation: 

While legal counsel has concluded that this is not a violation of the CHARIHO Act or other 
applicable regulations, we recommend the District amend its budget and accounting 
policies to be explicit when presenting commitment and reappropriation requests to the 
school committee that there be a separate authorization to commit funds and then to 
reappropriate them in the fiscal budget. 


